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IN THE HIGH COUR'T ()F STNDH BI1NCII A'I'ST]KI(UIT

Before: Mr. Justice Mahmood A- Khan'

Mr. Jrrstice Mohammed Karitn Klran Aglra

C.I' No.-1232 o1'201 5

lV1ul'raurt-; l;td Ari l'feevno

-t
Vs

National Accountability Bureau and otirers

Petitions For cont-irmation of pre-amest bail

C.P. No. D-I823/2016, C.P. No. D-36651201b,
C. P. No. D-369412016, C.P. No' D-4555/2015.
C.P No. D-3800/2016, C.P. No' D-3'19112016.

C.P. No. D-433612016, C.P. No. D-4/+92l2016'

C.P. No. D-371012016, C.P' No. D-34812016

C.P. No. D-349512016, C.P. No. D-l;i39/2016

x Iletitions for post arest bail

C.P. No. D-344117016, C.P. No. D-356412016.
C.P. No. D-367312016, C.P. No. D-362312016.

C.P. No. D-410712016, C.P. No. D-410512016.

Mr. Nisar Ahrnad Bhanirhro. advocate for the petiti6ticrs in t'.P. \lo []-
423212016. C.P. No. D-365-s/2016 a/w the petitioncrs;.

Mr. Nisar Ahntcd Bhantrhrcr. advocate for thc itetitiri0i:r's iri ('.1' j.'lr; l;-
3,+41t20t6.

Mr. Shabbir Ali Bozclal advocate for tl're pcttttorlcr iri ll'i'
I823/2016 a/r.v lhe pctitioner.

Mr. (ihulanl Shabir Dai'o, o6ou"atc for lltt: lltltrtiont:t':'l ili ( l'
3694/10l6,Cl.P. No. I)-3ii23- ("P. N,'' i)'-"''t19,?(ii'''.r''ti t I'

433612016 a/rv the pelititiire ls

i

Mr. Ltaji Shanrsuddrn Rlril',cr'. rr(i\/('r!lrrtr iirr {ite petttiottet'r; rtt {.'.1}. i',r
l.1B/2(I16, g.p. l{i. i)--1..it!;',[1 i6 ;:;11! ,i'.1] li;r l)-JI',,5 li.rii rl ,.

pctitioncrs.

l)-

(.ounscl lbr the Pt:titionct's:
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\l Mr.J.K. Jarrvar, adl'ocate lrtr thc Petili{''oLrl's in C'lr' Nc' -l''-i'/('i"-)1:)/ 'r'r\\

the petitioner.

Mr.J.K. Janvar, advocate ltrr' the p'':titiortcr in C'P' No' D-4 I 0720 I 6'

Mr. Muhammad Faroocl -Iatoi, advocate tbr the petitioner iil c.P. Nti. l-r-

3800/2016.

Mr. Shaikh Alnanullah, aclvocate for the pctitioirer in C P No I-t-

371012016 ai w the pctititrncr.

lvtu'. Sohail Ahrned Kltoso, atlvocate flor the petitioner in (l'P' No' D-'156-li l0lt1'

Mr. Abdul Raheetn r\trbasi advocate for the petitioner in tl'P No' i)-

449212016 a/w thc Petitioncr.

Counsel for lhe Ilesnondcnts:

Mr. Muhamu.racl Zubair ivlalak A.D.l'.G.,\. NAII (Sullirirr"r :iix Airrltrl

Ma.leed Memon, Special Prttsecutor NAB (Srrklillr) .islii.ilct! lr.i', lrlas;ood

Ahmed, Deputy DirectoriS.l.O NAB Sukktrr.

On Court Notice

Mr. Nisar Ahmad Abro, learned D'A.G

Date of hearing 08-02-20 1 7, 09-02- 17, I 5-02-20 I 7' I 6-02-2(t l'7 .

21 -02-2017 and 22-02-2{t 1 7

Date of Order: 07'03-2017

Nlohammctl Karinr l(hau Auira.J.BV tlriS COrnfroliite l}t tL:' !'\'t lll ()l)r-'j' ' i '

clispose of the above rnentioned petitions filed by petitioners Muhammacl Arit

'[eevno. lvlst. Llameedn Khanum, Imtiaz Ali Sahito, Khan N'lultarnrnad I'irzatla-

Alrr"ncd l(ran Solangi. Syed sabrrl Shalr, Ghulatrr A'sgl.rai lta.ip''r, Ahtlullah

Nagore, Ivlst. Jannat Khatoou. lr,fst. Shlzia Pitrvtrcn- irniiaz- Ali ir:rlhorir, iVisl

Ajeebatt arttl Ni:zatnud{i1 St,larrgi lirr corrt'irmatiotl r-il rlreir pttl ill.:i"\t l)i:ll 'id

+

x

).

petitioners, namely, Manthar Ati tshanbhro, Mutntaz A.li solangi. s]'.:d l,a-iiti

ORDER



.-1

v Shah, Maslrooq AIi Mernol, Ivlulramttiad l(arig: iurd Sajjad ]ltrssain {rrt the gr;rrr{

ol'lheir post arrest bail,

2. rul the petitioncrs have been accused ot'oorruptitltr and corlupt prilctrccs

tu,der the National Accountability ordnrarrr:e 1999[NAO) whiclr lt:acl ltr the

Narional Accouutability Bureau (NAB) filing NAB refercnce 06i2016 Thc S{atc

verscs Muhammccl Arif Tcevno and 62 others against thern atttl others ori i ti-08-

20 t 6 which is currently proceecling betbre tlte Accounlabitity Court at Sttlilctrt '

3. l'he briel'facts of the case as allegecl by thc prosecution are ttrat dtrrirrg the

periocl 01.01"2014 to 31.08.2015 Officers i olficials oi'District Accounls otllcc

(l)AO) Naushehro Feroze, in conuivaucc ancl in collttsittit rvith Olllcers '/ 
()ltrcials

ol National Bank of Pakistan (NBP)(ir4ain Branch) Naushehro iicroze. NIlt' []lriria

(lit,v Branch, District Naushchro Ircroze and tlnited llank Ltd lLIIlt')' i'iitttsltcrht'o

Iieroze. along rvith agents, lakc / dummy pensioners and ltort-pensionel's;' ittiLLir'rlli

Iolclers benet-rciaries ancl others by misuse of autlr6r'lty rryith lhc itttetrtiott ttr

c:rntrczzle and urisappropriate have oaused loss to the natirllrl t:';tliit:title;' io tlir-

Iune ol. lls.l55,475,1lli- (Irifteen crores Fifty Four l,acs Scvcttt"'i'.ir/' i"'r)'r"'rril'

(lne l-lun<lred ancl Eleven Rupees ctnly) bY issuing botir take antl tr-rarlialll- lrri"t'

irlvoicc, sheets i.e. 32x ccln-rplete foke ; clumrny sheets / ct'rilit ittl.r'tcc: ' P( ilsi{il)

pilyees bills, 19x other partial fake dummy pension inroicc shccts rrert' i:istirrl '''r

District Accounts Oflice Naushehro llerozc. itr the tlarlie trl pcttsir''rer'\' I:l:r

pensioners and account holcler benel'iciaries who u'ere urrl :rutitlecl tiit :i ";l':

tl.rereafler conveyed / cretliterl atl iltegal alrlL]unts of all iirti lulll trariial {uLe :rltr':':i:;

and payec acct-runts only pcnsion biils tlrrough agcrtt: io'i'il l'iifi.l (lill' r"'illelr

\vere thereafler illegall-V clc:aretl l-'V nrairr brauch ol'Nllii 36d ljlt! Sttllsutlttlrttli

all amttunts rvere trans l'erred i clciJitc<1 into tlte aocouitt:r iil titlic i tltitllltt"

+
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I pensioners i non-pensionels oi into the &ccoun$ crf account hoidcrs w'hich u'cre

llot pensiouers or actual benef iciarics and all the above payments la'ere recortciletl /

verifiecl illegally by District Accottnts OtIice without any objection whioh rcstrlted

in a huge loss to the national cxchcqtrer.

4. As can be see[ there were br0adiy 3 t(.) 4 categories o.1'acottsed in tltrs

irtlegecl scanr; Firstly those who welt: bank officials (NBP and t-lBt')' strcolldly

thosc wlto rvere ofticers belonging to the DAO' ttrirdly agelits and fourthly tlte rrar;l

ma.lolity of the accused whose nutnbel' is about 40 out of the 63 accttsecl rvlto rvere

beneficiaries; itt terurs that wronglul amounts were paid into their acctlunts whiclt

thcy allegeclly benefitecl ll'orn. It is alleged that all the bank olllcialri and DAo

olllcials and beneficia:ies colluiletl and connivcd together in this allcge<l strirrrt

rvhich would not have been possible without the collusion and connivallce ol'eaclr

other and in particular the ot-licial accused.

5. 'l-he refbrence. in our vieu,seeurs to be rather conlilsing, in that il sc:t:tltr; tir

breali clgrvp into thc rnain and largest olfense concerning illegalities in the

llilylneltt o{'pensions ancl two rnuch smaller otf shoot c:irscs u'hich sccln lt'' hitt'c

c()lt)e to light during [hc course of the pensions iuvestigation (ail<l i.tiit't: lstl br"'ctl

ilcluded in this retbrence) rvhich rroncern first!1, thc illega.l crcatitln ol tr"rtt gltor;t

teac6er accounts and the illcrgal payrnent of their salaries zrtrd scctritdl)' illcgrrl

paymer-rts which rvere rnacle by tlvo NBP olficial:; at the NtlP llrailt bralloll lo irllc

' .: beneficiary rvho lvas a drivr.'r' in tlre irrigation department. So tar as possihlc rve

have tr.iecl to clearly iclentily in thc orcler which accuser.l reiile to thc tlYo qtl'shot)l

scams in the sections rlealilg lvith llic petitions ltrr trclth pre arrest anti posl arrc:;t

hail.
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T 6. We have heard the leau",,:l coriri;rsl iir, tlre pctitit;riors. Al-)l'C,\ NAli anil

learned DAG perused the record vt:ry caretirlly anrj the case lau, cited at thcr lrar [r)'

thcnr

7. As per settled law we have orrlf inaile e tentative assessment of the material

placed before us and this order sltall not prejudice the cass of any party at trial

which shall be decided by the trial court on rnerit based on the evidence before it.

t{. Wc shall deal rvilh the case ot-u,rtch petitioner in tum dealing lirstll' rvitlt

those petitioners rvho have applicrl tirl pr:c anest lrail. [n every case brlilt li)(r llrc

at'rest bail aud post arrest bail petitions were vehelrletitli' op110tcrl bt' llrt

NAII.NAB in so doing placed relilnce on the lbllowing cases repoltctl as MI's.

Farhana Muzaffar V. Nation:rl Accountability Bureau lnd 4 othcrs (30 l7 P

cr.. I- J l), Abdullah Durrani v. The Statc (2004 SCMI{ 12()0). llamoorl-Lir-

Rehman irnd others V. Chairman, National Accountabilitl' Bureatt.

Isl:rnr:rbatl tn{ others (2016 P Cr. t. J 934), Faisal Hussain Butt v' Tlre Staie

:rnrl:rnotlrer'(2009 SCMI{ 133), Abdullah Durrani and others V- T'he St:rlc

(2004 SCIVIR 1200) and an Order by Hon'ble Supreme Court in Civil l'etition

No.787 of 2016 NAB V Mohammed Ali (urrreported) dated l0-05-20[6 (u'hich

cancellecl the glant o1 post arrest lrail by tllis court dated 20-01-]Olfr Lrr rtc('trSe(;

No.2 Muhatnmed Ali Panhwar in the reference who ts one ol- the nritili .loclll,cl(i ill

the relerence being Districl Accounts Otlicer at the titne ol' tire oIl'ense *ltr''

therealler abscondcd).

\

I
9 ln cleciding these bail ltetitions il'ioth pr,: '1116'it xrld pcst affesii',';c lrar't

taken ipto account the liduciary dutl'r'i'irir;h oil-rcrals i'l'[lt* tir\i') and ll:inl'

otticials ha\,e to the public as lve ll ils to their emplo-v-e|s us op1:tl::':d [i;;tr r'''rsi'd

i.P
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Y rvho are members of the public and orve no such duty of trust trt firrarrcial lltitttcr:i

to olhcr' parties

I'ETITIONS FOR. PRE ARITES'T trt,'t[L

Befole considering petitioner No.l's case and that of the other pctil.ioncls orr

interim pre arrest bail in this case it is in our view necessal'y to obiiervc thlrt lrs i:,

well known the conditions lbr the grant of pre arrest and post arr,.:st bail arc ilLtit,:

distinct in larv and werewell set out in the case of Rana Mohamtned Arshrlrl V

Muhammed Rafique (PLD 2009 SC 427). In this case at P. 'tr31 thc lollttrvinS,

conditions need to be satisfied belbre prc arrcst bail can be graitit:C irs sct otlt

bclorv:

"9. Even since then, the said interpretation so made, the said po\','ers

so found and the parameters so prescribed, have bcen regularh' lrncl

repeatedly coming up for scrutiny by the Superior Courls including ihir;

Court. But each time the matterwas re-exemined, the salnc $'ils onl-' i'.'
affirmed. The said concept as it was initialiy propounded; '1s 11 6lsvgirrp,:t!

and as the same stands today, may l'le suininarized for the lreneiit ot'rr:. ;tll
as under:--

(a) grant olbail before an'est is an extraordinarv rciicl'tit he gratttctl

only in extraordinary situations to protect innoct:ttt pcrsons

against victimization through abuse of law for ullerior
motives;

(b)pre-arrest bail is not to be used as rt sultstitltttr or as:rll
alternativc lbr post-arrcst bail;

(c) bail bcfore arrest can not be granted unless thc pcrsotl
seeking it satisfies the conditions specified sttbscction (2) o{'

section 497 of Code of Criminal Procctlut't i.e. unloss hc

establishes the existence t'rf reasonable groutrds leading to a ['reliel'

that lre was not guilty of the of]bnce alleged agirinst him and that

there r.vere, in fact, sufficient grounds wananting furlber incluill
into his guiltl

(d) not just this but in addition thereto. he must irlso shorv th:tr
his arrest was being sought for ulterior tnotive, parlicularll
on the part of the police; to cause irreparable humiliation to

him and to disagree and dishonor him, '
v?

L
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10. 1'he requircr-nent of rilalat-rclc in order to clr"ralily itrr pre arrcst bail has

recently becn emphasized by the Flon'ble Supreme Court in the case oi'Mukhtar

Ahmad v. The state and others (2016 SCI\{R 2046. relevairt page 206t'-)

as under:-

(e) such a pelrtioncl si,r,,r,J i!.rrtiici cstatrlisfi that }c l31l iriil (],rilc ir:'

str{'li','rcd any fl(:l iviii.'i ,'.'t.,il!<l disentitle !tittr io lt tiisc:t'ctiotlitr\'

rerlief in 
".1,iit5,".g. 

lrc lurl ll() past lrritnirrti lr)i:Ol(l ol iltat lie ltatl

not h,r{ln a lirgitive al law; ancl finiillv lhat:

(t) in rhe abscnce o{' ;i rctrsoniirle and a.iustitiablc catls,i. tl l)(-rliioil

clesiring his aclmissiotr to ttail beftlre arrcst, rrttst' in lhr: lll'st

i,sta,ci approach t5c Cour' of first instant i.e. th': C.rtrl .['
Session, b"io." petiticnillB ttre High Court for the purposc "(hokl

added)

"....... This Court has repeatedly dcclared that the

concession of pre-arrest bail carrrtot be allowcd to an

accusecl p"."on unless the cottrt l'eels satisfied zrbr>ut

seriousniss of the etccuse d pet soi-t's; asset'tion

regarding his itttenclecl arrest belng actuat'ed lly maia

fide on the lrart of the complainant parly or ttre loc;:rl

Police"

.t

1-

I l. Petitioner No.l in CP L 4232t2015 is Muhamrnad Arif Teevno (acc'ttsretl

No.I in the ref'erence) tvho at the tirne of the aliegetl si:iitl1 rvlts lrtltrlclt t1).llll!sr:l'

Nl3I' l3hiria City.

12. According to learnetl counsel for petitioner No.1 thc pctitigncr rs

corupletely iunocent ot'any w[ol]g doing in thi|} case. Accrirding lo liitlt thcl't is

clear rnalafide on the part of NAB since NAB in preparirlg its investiglrtllll lcpt)('l

and liling the referenr:e lracl rcliecl exclusively gu an itrterual rltcluiry Isl)()rt can'ie(l

out b1,the NBP which implicated lrin and had taik:d to trtllorv up a-ny other leatis

or carry out any l'urther inquiries. llvotr rrthenvistr hrr ltarl nt) role to plav irl tht-'

alleged scam. This was bec:ause he rvas.thc biiurcit Initllilgtrr at NII['Ilnrl'r:i i iit

antl his role rvas limiti:d to paying irl lo the rsleiril:rt i:cct.rurtts iite cltequcs ivlticli lre

\.i
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\ had receirred liorn thc DAO rvhictr l-rnd been verilied bv the DAO anrl in elll'ct lrr

was simplv a post box whose onlyjob ',a,as sinrply to pa1, in the chequc:r *'hich hc

harl received and as such lre hrd not misuscd or failed to exercise his authoritv in

any way. Lle was sirnply following stanriard barrking proceclure. \A/ith reglrd to the

allegations that he had received pecuuiary arlvantage on acoount of his role in the

alleged scam he admitted that there rvas about RS50 lacs in his bank accourrt l'rut

clairned that this was the accumulation of his salarv and other lawful income

cluring the course of his caleer ancl that no lump sums hati been received rvhich

could not be;rccounted for. With regard to a flat which he was purchasing lbr 3tl

lacs he submitted that this had been made possible on account of a lotrn which lre

had received ltorn the bank and rvhich he was paying bach in instalhucnts arrtl thLrs

he had received no pecuniary advantage whatsoever. 1'hus, acctilding io lcarned

counsel he rvas cornpletely innocent of any wrong doing anci his prc arrest hail

should be conlirmed

1.

13. 1'he petitioner No.l as rroted above subrnilted that thele iraC l,.curr rnrrialllc

ott the part of iriAB as they had blindly relied on the NBP inlcnial inuuir'1,arrtl rroi

carried oul tlieir own incluiry. Wc iind no srrbstance in thi:i sui'rrnis:ri,irr. l'iri.r i:r

hccause the internal inquiry implicat"ed thc pctitiouer No.[. NAI] hus it()[ o(]nljrr('(!

itscll'to pel.itirtner No.l in its rclcrcnce but it ltas thrtiur:t; it;., (,\\l

inquiry/investigation also addcd the additional names of' 62 ollit:r' lrCe:us,:r(l

including other bank olljcials. officials ol'DAO. agcnts antl t large nirrrrbcl ol

beneficiaries. In addition it lras conre lo the conchsion that a liri qrci(er iinr(!unr.

has been embezzled than was suggcstetl by the findings of rhe inte'r'r,iil inqulr.v

Thus rve find that there has been no malat-rde on the part of NAB antt (ln this

grrrund.alone petitioner No. I 's petition lbr pre arrest bail sh<iuld bf rcciti!rrtl.
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14. \\/e havc hou,eveu touchecl rrlron lhe nrerits ol'the case lnd it appe;rls itl ortr

view tfiat there is sufficicnt material to priniir facie connect the petitioner No. I ttr

the offense with which he is charged.

15 Petitioner No. l has been assignecl a specific role in the referencc- rvlrich is

set out as under at para's 3 to 4 of the rcl'crence:

3.That the investigation rcport reveats that Accused No' I I

Muhammacl Arif Teevno Ex-Branch Manager, National Barrk ol'

Pakistan, Bhiria City Branch, District Naushehro Feroze. during his

incnmbency frorn 01.01.2014 to 20.08.2015 in connivance rvith

accused No.2 to4, & l0 received fake / dummy "payee accoutlt

only" pension bills in the name of several pensioners pertaining to

32x oo[rplete invoices and l9x partially fake invoice sheets ttl'

fake/durnmy pensioners issued from accused No,2 to 4 of Dish'ict

Accounts Office Naushehro Feroze. of pensioners and l)on-

pensioners as beneficiaries who were not legally entitlerl ftrr thr'

i,rrp tu, pe,sioners. Thereafter, acctsed No.l prepared t;ollection

uouilr"rr of 396x ..payees account only" pension bills/invoices ancl

got them cleared &orn NBP Main Branch Naushehlo Feroze. Atler

cletrrance of "payees account only" pension bills. ilccusetl creclitcrl

tlre amounts into the accottuts of. the other persons/pensioncr:r itt:;tcr:'i

of the itctual beneficiaries on whose names bills were initiatcd. 
'l'hrrs"

accusetl Muhammad Arif '['eevno credited/errtered the lutnp sttrrt

alnorrnts crf payees accortnts only pension billsivouclrers into lilr'
accounts ot:accusedNo.l3, l;t and 20 to 63 and then accused Nn I

encashed or transferretl all the illegal amounts illcgall,v irr

connivance with accused No.2,6 to 10, 13, 16, 19 to 63 to the trirrc

ot'lts.f!, 18, 17,843/- (Eight Crores Eighteen One Lac Seventttctl
'fhousand Eight Hundred and Forty Tlrree Only) and caused losr: ttt

tlre national excltcquer.

4(a). That tlre invesligation report further reYealecl that i1l,:grrl

additional fake "payees rlccount only" pension bills were repeatctllv

issued in the name of accuseci No.13,14 and 20 to 63 pensioners lutl
non-pensioners beneticirrries repeatedly in additic,n to therir nlonthh

pension/others paymeilts <tf accttsed No. 13,14 and 20 lo 6J thr'

rvhich they were not legatly entitlecl. All the pension l'flynlcnts
nere issued by accused No.2 and 3 ille.gally which nras bcint{

credited by accused No.t into the irccounts of accused No'|3; l4
and 20 to 63 and caused loss to the national exchequer to the ttlrlir

ef Rs.4, lo.97.4531- Four crorcs Ten Lac, Ninety Sevelt "l-hottsartil

firrnHundred and Fifu 'I'hrec Only) and the total loss is lls'12. l9'
t]:96 (T$'elYe Crorcs '1-wentl' Ninc La': liifteetr '['ltctt:ralttl

r?ke3rtrj and Ninetl' Six { )nli').
.,9 
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4(b).'l'lltlttirtirrvr-::'tilliiii(];irtli)i]i'lliil'tlri:r'rcvealsthatilcctlrltdN'r'1
having gairrs trt tt''' tn'ln'"ti: t''"""tr'' (:i i':d ll'i(l rr'i the tuuc 'r[' lis'){)'

01,78611Fi111'l"tS"''*"'lttt"l".-,,''''icvcl'rHtlncl!'editnrlLlglrtySi:;
only) into lris, perst"rli- aocolllll' l':o'l-?" NRP tluring [ltc rtt.lovt'

incumtrency petitxl ar"t 
"',itl t'ir"Irit'tctl ilat,No' 106 llnited L tttrtplt-'x

I-lyderabad in the nanre t'i:r'il "itt itccused No'l l/trenarrtidar'lirr tlrc

arnount of Rs.3tl, uoii,iil: iL:irirtv Eight Lac onlv) q'i1l-r lhr

connivance of nttu'"tl' i;'-''i:' '''r'ilttitio,atl-v all an.lounl rrl- lts'78'

42,036t- (Seventy eigii't 'rt ii'1 li 'l'uo Thousantl 2n{'1 1111'1i'Si:r

only) rvere credited'O-'"1* thrs pel'iocl, irr tltc itcL''LrtlnI ot' lris

wife/accused Nr:'11' 
"ii"t'"'tt- 

accusecl No' l is involvcd irr

embezzlement/misappropliation ol' government. llnds. ":ltl]lll].'
intentionally. ,ti*tlonttiii rrrisuscd ltis atrtlrotitv and tailcd to oxcr(:rse

his authority t., pr"u# ffiil;'"i ttnaut hene{lt rvhiclr hc r;oukl

have prevented bv ;;';;; uf his authoritv and.lrc'' l:1":1,' ]"
couspiracy, "o,lriuu"J" 

oiltt""O No'2 tt-l4' fi to l3' 15' l6 & 1t) tt-'

63 and causecl rot''it''it-'t"noiin'"r exchequer to tlu' lttttc o1

r,ts.12,29.,15,2961- (T"'et"t' C'rtlres Twenty \i11s l-ac Fiti':L'il

il;;;ri Tivo Hundred and Ninetv six onll')'

/

\

16. Tlre petitioner No'l admittetl ttrat he \,1ils awtlfe cr!.thc barrk..s...kn()\\, -Y(\til

custolrer polic,v" and as such hc should have kttolvt-t wlr';tther illl thc acc'r'rtrtlt:' \r''(:r'(

those ol'genuine or thke pensiotrers especiallv as ire kncrr'v the purpost' lot rvhicli

thr:se lunds were sent ancl tlrc rough amount to he paicl into those acct'itttttli lll ()t'll'

vicwitbeggarsbcliefthatalnanlrclldingl..ispositiortarrdolhisseiritlritlirir,

accotrnts in whicll lnoiley was illegallv ;taicl +t

runaware of' non Pensloners

1-re,si<lners accountants where e,xorbitant arnounts (rvell beyontl tlrere utt;rrtlllr'

pension entitlemeut) r'vas being paid on [umerous (as cpposetl f i is..'iirt':'l]

C)ccaslons

r.r . Furthermore, in the covering letter senr by NBI' to NAI] on 28-0tl-2() I r hy

3seniorrrfl.icersol.tlreNBl,itcontaitrcdacomplaintlitrnrN{r.Mohatntnetl[}a.',..,

Avp NBp Main Branch l(hairp.r rvrricrr speciticaliy set o't as under:

"l arn working as AVP lllationai Bank of I']akistan tnain Rrritri:li

Khairpur, *t "il*'"t?ir"uini"g 
t t"o"tt kno*" as Bhiria City iir;firtir

District Naushehro Fer.oze, ihe bronch iJ^",rr"go.y '1', Branch having 'i ';r;Lil'

mernbers, th" ;;;;;i;-Manager rras-i""ait"harge ihc duties rrrrtl

functions ls Llperltiolis Managcr' Compliance offitcr antl Ilrriich

Manager. 
.th,,;rt;;;':i,:r," .,.*,,ilrrerl ro pro'ide geu!-ritl banking :ir-'{'' rt {jl

,1,.
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to public so also lbr thr: pav,nents agai,rst (iovernment lleasur:' Bills
including the pensiorr/salaiy hiiis issued hy Govenrmental Departtnents.
The procedure adopted lbr thc l.ravtneut agirinst Governmenl Trcasurlr Billc
r.vas routed through the llhiria l-Jranch who sent all 1'reasury Bills urrder its
advice to Naushehro t'eroze District Branch lbr clearance and, the said
District Branch after verifications makes entries debiting the Governtrrtrnl
Exchequer and orediting the Bhiria Branch for onward payments to lltc
beneficiaries of those Bills. "

I 18. This position has not been disputed/denied and clearly shows that trot onlv

was petitioner No. I Branoh marltlgcr but he \\/its operations tnanager lnrJ

compliance officer which further tbrtifics the above view that rt was his

responsibility to ensure that ihe accounts where the funds were paid int<l rverr:

genuine pensioner accounts. were not private aocounts and the cLlrrect arr()tllltri

were being paid in. This in our view clearly shou's that the petitionet'Nr-r-l r,r,as

prima facie acting in collusion and connivance rvith oltcers o1'the DAO. (ihularrr

Ashgar Rajper (accused No. l0 who acted as an agent tbr petitioner No. l, olhcr

accused in the DAO and many of thc beneficiaries) and other benetlciaries anrl

{ that he both failed to exercise his authority and misused his aulhoritl, to the benellt

o1 other accused in the reference (the beneficiaries).Not once did he evcr qucsritrn

the payee accounts or the amounts being paid into the ac<:ounls dr:spilc lrcing

compliance officer. In our view sirnply to blame everything on the [,)AO is no

defense as he had his own specific roles and responsibilities to play as lrranch

manager, operations rnanager zrnd compliance officer rvhiclr in. oui vicrv he

interttionally iailed to hrlhll. The fact that he continuously and regularly thilctl

to perfonn any of his duties is a strong indication that he r,l,as acting irt collusion

and connivance with the DAO's, Ghulam Asghar Rajper (ar)cuSecl No:10) arrd

I other benelrciaries

19. ln our view petitiorrer No.l has also not beel able Io adecluatel-v explirirr r!r,'

nulnerous transl'ers ranging betrvcen ItS300.000 and RSI lOLl,(.)()0 inttr hi:i pc!.;r)lrirl

\ r,
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Lranli accoult in addiliol to lris salary rvhir:lr tcntls tt'r stlggr::i ilrri rirrrt iirc'::: litttti:'

werc transt-erred to hinr by berrelir:inrios wlto had benefitccl li'ritlr iri; l11 r'1'''- t,'

atrthority antl lirilurc tt'r exercise authority by allowing large ilir:g,rrl ;ttttl

uuaLlthorizcd ovel.payulents into peusioller accounts or accoutrts rvhich clitl rr0l

cven beloug to pensioners. Like \\,ise iIl ou1 view his story of I loan to ptttchrtsr:

lris llat in lris rvil'e's nalne does not seeln credible basecl on the nra(eriai lrc'iirt'e ris.

20. FIis story that he was sirnply a post box is also belied by the l?rct thal il is

clear frorn the banking documents rvhiuh have been procluced beli're r-ts that h,:

was not.iust paying these sums into ccrtain accounts. Ratlrer lre tvas reeci\/irlA hilli

and uraking short credit entries. IIo rvas receiving bills in tltc: nattti' ol'X antl

paying those bills ipto the account of Y and as such he lvas notJust a Ft)st hox blrt

u'as intricately involved in the alleged scam.

ll. The 3.16l stat!-tnents of Zubair Ahrned Jamali, Ms Salia .tbba". irl:'

lmmazadi, Kaneex Akhtar and a letter by Ms Nosheert to DG N,\B irnri rrr

ltirrticulal Muhanrured Qasim Dayo irlso lirlif implicate Petrii'lnel l'iu". I rtt titc

3lleged scatn and show his close association rvith Ghulam rrsghar' liitipcr itr tlr,.:

allegecl scat'n as his agent rvho hari heen sent tiorn the office oi'tht: l)A0 rvillr ili,-:

firke and partially lirke bills.

22. 'l'hus lbr all thc abovc reasolls we are ol the view thal prirnii litcic srrll ie ie rrt

luraterial exists to connect petitioner No. I to the trfTetrse lbr wiriclr ltc is ihiirg,-xl

and as we havc also louncl uo malall(lc on the part of NAll ltct'ci-r1 recirlI his ,lrticr

[tx'pre arrest bail grarnted by this crrurt datecl 1l-11-2015"

23. Petitioncr No.2 in CP.D 3665/2016 is Ms Harnecdit Kltalrtllll (accttsetl

No. ll in the rel'erence) rvho is thc wil'c of'petitioner No.i {.Muharnlneri Aril-

'feevno) rvho rvas a junior sclrtltll teaclrsr at tlte tirne of the allcgrt, t"o,n,. 
.^ ,\u)

\
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\ 24. Accorcling to learnecl counrcl fi-tr pr:.iitioncr Nrr.2 pctitii'rnr:r' Ntl'l is

completely innocent of an1'wrong doing uril ltas bestt rnalatidt-,ly inclttdecl irl tlris

rcl'ercnce by NAB and there is not a slrretl t:l'eYidence against her. He explainccl

that she lrad made a paylnent lbr her fiat thrrrugh Mr.i.,eeshat who rvas lter cottsitl

ancl that there ra.,as nothing wrong in tlrtt. Ile lliso pointed otlt that thcrer tvt:l't: lttt

large payrnents or an),irregularities in her bank stiltenlents.'fl1sl'{j lvarr ttttl'r'oltc

large payment o1'RS 7, 00,000 which lvas her salary ixh'ancr;.'['htlS. ilcOor(lirt!: io

l-riur shc was completely innocent oi atty wlong doing and her llre arresl bilil

should be continned.

25. Petitioner No.2 has been given a specific role in the reference it Parn l'l

and l5 rryhich are set out below

..14. That the investigation report reveals that r\cctrsed No. I l/\tst.
I-lanieeda Khanum w/o Mtthammad Arif -l'eevtro is li .ltttlitrr fichotil
'racher (.lsT) anct benanridar of accused No. I Mr. Aril' l-ct'vno itttcl

,(

accused No.l l purchased during 01'01.2014 I'o .ll'0tt 2015 u lk
Llnited Cornplex Hydei'abad for 11,s.38.00'0001'- (thirty liight

only) and cheque No.6150-59 dated24.122014 uf acctrsetl No'f
Rs.i,ZS,OOOf- (Three l-ac 'llventy liive 'Ihousand t)nl1') vthig

ItL
1.

ti I

durnmy l'lcrrCljciarv ha.'; itlsg beetl givcrr lly ltlr;rlc.:tli1 [r'i111'1i1r11 jt:;'

tlte paylnent to the lirrrlrlcr of abc)\,c l)irt tlrrogr]h Ihc lict:ci,t,{ .i1 ,\11'

Zeeshatr Rehttratr accl-!sed No' 12 lbr 1ltc l)il-vllie lll t tl' llrt:r ''
Its.38,00,00()/- ('Ihirt-r- tright I ac onlvi arrcl iir',,'cstigaliLrr: l,r,iitut'

reveals that lts.78,42,036r- (seventy fiight l-ac Iiorty 'l u,<', I litirrsitrt,i

arrcl Thirtl Sir only.l has also crecliteci into ite: a(:c()tinis l'l'r li-t'
(n6v re-r1urlberefl 30i4459107) NBP llfiiria ( riy l)i'irtl':lt. tltllirrl:
above pcriod, thcretbrr:' accusetl No. I I is in""rlVtrti irs :'1[r1:l[1r1"

benarnidar atttl rnstrtrnrental in CAtlSinu io:;s t{) tirc llil(ir)!lill
exchequcr.

i5. 'lhat tho ittvestigatiott reporl revcals ti,ai itt:cttsc'j No'i2'
Z,eeshan l{ehrrran is relative, conspiral.o:, altetttir aitd ittstr'.tiiicrtl,tl lil
..rccused Nos. 1 ancl I I and abettecl, tacilrtiltcd tht acouseti Nt,. I ;rttti
l1 to misappfopriate ill-g<-rtten molley throrrglr liis perstxltri accoiirr!

as through ohcclue No.0-s l()9lt dulcct i)8"' ivlar' ?.() I -. Clietlti,'

No.0510t75 dirted 04'l' llay 20 14 iud citeiltrc iirrl.i-ilf(lj9() tiitt.'il

11,1, May 2015, Rs.2,00,000i - recci,rcd lrorr; iri-rth it.',:it:il'ti rlli(l

thcreafte;' purchased the i'lat olt llehail Ot'accusdd No.l i altti .ri:','

received ih"qu., No.615059 dat.r.i -14"' iJL-culllttL:l- ltj I i t,i

Rs.3.25.00Ui- iTh.." Lac 'fu'ent1, Five Thousand onll I a'l';rccttsetl

No'21 / S}'ed Sahul Shah arrd then alter etlcashirrg' ticirosiictl tl'*'

above amounts lbr tire purchase ot'tlat No.iLiti ilrritttl t otlllrit'r
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l-lyderabatl in the natne of sccuse,<l No. ll, theiufol'tr. tltc auutrsctl

No. l2 is involved as lacilitator,
connivance with accusetl Ntl.1

abettor
arid I i

and conspirattrr
ancl involveti

ln
in

misappropriation 0f golernnrcnt l'und rvhich resultcd loss lti tltc

national exchequer.

2(t. I,ctitioner No,2 has not lreen able to give auy plausiblc cxplanaliott irs ltr

rvhy she paicl t-or rhe llat through Mr.Zeeshau who is her cousin. llthe lirnds lirr

thc flat had heen untainted in our view she rvould have paid it out ol her orvtt

account by chcque u'through cash. Mr. Zeesham has entererl into a plea t-'argitirt

rvith NAll aucl aclnrittecl his guilt. It is therelbre prinra litcic eviclcni that llelitioner'

N6.2 was t|e belarnidar olpetitionet'No.l (rvho is her httstrirud) antl rvirs Lrcirig

lse{ to hi{e the ill gotten rnoney which her husbanci ivas rgceivitlg lionr

beneliciaries whour he had lavored. liurthennore. there arc large att.tiltttlts itt llt:r

bank account rvhich shc ltos uot been able to 6dequatell cxpiain. A. lcttcr bv N'ls

Ngsfteen ro D(] NAB also shows the role rvhich petitiouer Ntl.?. llirl,ecl itlottg r'r'itlr

her husband in giving ell'ect to this aileged scam whicli rsads as ttntlc-r:

" fo,

The f)irector General,
NAB Sukkur.

Sir,

I lvlst. Nosheen wife of Abdul Ghaffar (late) toclav

appeared in the ot'fice of NAB. Mr. Masood Ahniecl thc

Investigating Ofljcer oINAB showed me details of my bank accotlttt

arrd toltl that transaction of about Rs.3364822/- has becn rnude

through your account. I replied that rny late husband Abdul (ilrat'frrr

s/o Utnaru<ldirt was a Teacher in Primary School who expircd rrrr l?
May.20 15 due to heart attacli. I was in [ddat period rvlten m]'

neighbourcr N{st. Hameeda Khanum Kltshntiri wile of
Muhammad Arif brought lne at their home hecause aller tleath

of rny husband lrehavior of my in-larvs was not gootl witlr lnt:'

Then one day Hanreeda Khanum Kashmiri and hrrl' husbittttl

Mulrammad Arif got opencd my bank account iu Natioual llartk
of Pakistan Bhiria city Rranch Distriet Naushehl'o Feroze. 'l'lrt'v

said that your pension pflllers irre to be pre;laretl s{) vot! ltlilY
give us blank cheques duly signed by vou later on l,tittt' pensir-irl

r.

)'

Yt
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,.{ rvill be made. Aller tlurt tltcy gave nrc Rs'50001- and then neitfrer

they paid me any amount no-' I ru""i'ed my p"T:,'I P::3:
.fr"qu" book. My cheque hook is. till lving with ttauceoe

Khanum Kashmiri, arttl'pension is also not drawn by me' (bold

added)

Sir, I never rveul in the ot'tice ol' District Accounls OfFcer'

Naushehro Feroze, neither got any bill nor deposited in my accorm4

only my mistake is tlrrrt I put my signatures on hlank chequcs ano

gave thetn, lbr that mistake I rnay be excused' I atn a rvidorv and

have a minor claughter; lbr her maintenance I aln facing very hard'

LIer age is three years. My staterrent is con'ect'"
/

t

27 . ln our vierv she has not been ahle to make out a casc ol l.alalidc on the part

o1'NAB lbr including her in the reltrence and in our view tlrerr: is also pritna lacie

sufflcient naterial to connect her rvith thc' ofl'ense oi'at a ttrtnitntttr; aitling and

abetting her husbancl aurl as arr accomplice and as bcing a lrencticiary through

being used as a benauridar. As sttch pctitioneri"lo.2's llrLr zlll'csl iuil lirirtrltrl hy liris

Court tlrrough order clated 26-08-2016 is hereby lecalled'

2tt. Pctitioner No.3 in cP D. 3$gn}rc is lrntiaz Ali sahito (Ar:t:rrst(l No'4

irr thc rel'erence) r'vho at the time ol'the alleged scam rvlls settior :rrtilitrrt !)A()

N auslrehro I"eroze

29. Acc0rcliug to learned counsel for petitioner No.j tltr.:re is no sllccilic

allegati6n i1 the ret'erence agailst him. he di{ not i:}repere any bills artcl lrt: ltlrd titr

authority to sanctiou the sapre. His role was gnly one ot'rer'orrciliatiorr altei' the

lvhole process [ra<l been corlptetcd i.c. the bill salctioled, bitticlrecltrc etrcitshctl at

the relevant bank wllich involvecl hiur ureohanically inpr,rtling the clatr ol thc bills

and olher doctttlents itrtg a ctlntl.lulcr. Furthernlore, hr: :iubrrritletl thlt hc was r'|li

. 
leavc rvhen the ..rrbezzleur$nt took place antl his place rvas lilicd by accusecl No']

lNizarnuddin Solangi) ancl in tl-ris rcsnect he placed on record documcllts sht)\\lns

his approrcrJ leave. He strhrrtrittetl that thc malntldes of thc NA'[] $'as evident lirtrn

Ir"e t.lct &ar thel'had not cven lrollterctl to chccli rvhetlier ir'-'rvts prt'seni Itn (ltttl

,l
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at thc tirne rl,hen the of usc \vas coitlil.iii.-,,; ';;r.l ne had been malafide roped in thc

case without any reasoll.'l'hus, aocorelirrg lo liim ire was conrpletely innocent ol'

any wrong cloing and hts pre arrest baiI sltotrlcl be ccrnlimred'

30. I)etitioiter No.3 has been given a specilic role in the ret'erence which is al.

paragraph T of tlre relerence and stutes as tttttlcr'
I

}.

..That the investigation report reveals that accused No.4 I lmtiaz;\li Sallito'

Senior Auditor, birt i.t 
-Accounts 

C)tlice, Naushehro Feroze, during his

incumbency dated Apr.il 20101o August 2014, in connivance with accused

No.l to 3,5,8 and 1g being n.head payment section rvillfully failed to

exercise his authority intentionally, frauclulently, dishonestly' .bv not

tallying the daily accounts for reconciliation figure of expenditure iucuned

on ih"-"p"nrion accou.t return" received from National llank of Pakistan

(Main Bianch) District Naushehro b-eroze throup;h bank scroll-and payees

accounts bills. The accused by misusing his authority rvilltull;' failed to

exercise his authority to prevent rendition of undue benefits by not

phVsically tallying thi figures with the bills I payment rccords of pcnsion

section of District Accourrts Office, Naushehro [ieroze and also trevcr'

complained or objected the illegal take payrnents and pension hills issued

in tlre name of several pensioners as rvell as non pensioners' 'fhercfbre,

accused acted in f'urtherance of cotnmon intention and in conspiracy irnd in

connivance with accused No.1 ro 3. 5, 8, l9 to 63. and involr'etl in tuisusc

of authority and misappropriation rvhich resultecl in loss to thc trational

cxchcquer."

,l

3 l. In esselce petitioner No.3 allegcclly ctitl n<.rt tall.v l-lte accouuts at lhe t:trtl r-rl'

t6e pr6cess by rnaking reconciliation ol-the satne trtt<i on accottnf o{'his fhiltrrc trr

do so tlte alleged sciull wellt unutllir:etl.

32. EYen il we acocltt that the petitioner was oli leave lioiri 16-0 l-20 14 trntit

l5-05-2014 (irpprox j months) this docs not oove,'the whole peliotl rvtretr tlre

allegcd otl'ense: took placc. As pcr rc,iclence tlte oll'errsc toi-t!. pi:ioe tretrvt:en 0l-()l

l0 I4 and 3l-08-2015 and as such petitionel No.-l rvas a,.-:tilr,ririe on dt:ri j'rr lltur('

than a lear during the pcriod wlrrn the ol't'ensc.r \.r:,it er'ti-;rli;tir-(,.

v'l
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33. Wc [a,.,c- becn slr6url u coi:!\, rt!'r,:irr-ripis anrl pa1 nrents date<i t,] Ul l(]l I

(w5ich was bsfbre he wcnt ou lcar,,:) irlr corrnectiirn with llu:;lllepeil :;t:;ttlt rr'lritlt

accorcling to NAB bears his signature. Although he denies hi-* slgnalrtrc ttl rrtti

vicrv il br:ars a likEness to the signattlru rin ilis pctition.

J4. l-he lact that thc petitioner mcrely played a tlrechauical rolc ar a lcrti()lr

rvlro sirrrpli, cntcl.c(l clata into a computcr is also belied bv btrth thc S. I(r I statutttctrt

ot'l)hiirri Bux Khan Jaheio a sub accou[tant u,ho gave tfie precise pt'ocetlure iviticlt

the petilioncr rvas rerluircd to undertakc atul cvcn thc rules ','viticlr pe:til.ioncr i"lo. i

lrillscll' rclicd upon (Cornbined sct oi 'freasu11' Rulcs Vtrl I arrtl llr ivltit lr

spccilically provide ar Section V undet the heacling daily pcsting ol act:ottttls rts

under

"DailY Posting of Accounts"

464. When the daily account with the challans xnd vouchet's receivetl

from the Bank, the account shall first be exnrninetl against the

challan and vouchers which support it. 'l'hen the challans antl

vouchers rvhich havc been already approYed and registered by the
'l'reasury Olficer shall lrrst be rlarked off in the register ol'c[allirrrs
issuerd antl orclers lbr llaii ment, that is, the date ol'dischargc shall he

ruoted against thc entrics uf them in thos.. tcgiilters. 0ach itt:nr ol'

rcceipt or paytnent will then be posterl fronr the d:ril1' actotlnt.
with its challans and vouclrel's into the cash book eithet' dit'trcl or
througlt sontc subsidiary register' and then net iliffcrcrrce
betlveen the total receipts and the total payrncnt postctl in tlttt
Register of State llanh Deposits in accttrrtrance with the

clirections contained in this behalf in thc.dtccrrrrnt Clotlc, Vol'Il'
The daily: postings in this register must be chcckctl and agreetl.

where necessary witlr the daily schedules receivcrl ttntlcr cl:lilsc
(iii) _ of rulc 457. (bold added)

35. ln oul vier.v it is quite apparent tirxn tlre aforesaiil S.ltrl staterncttt ittttl tltc

above rule that the petitioner Nr:.3 did not perfomr his lurrction rll'recout:iliatiotr tt:

r+as recluired anrl in this rssirrri deliLrcratelr lailcd io':x,;r,Jist- liis atrtlroritt' rrhiclr

lead to a hugc loss tr, tir; rurtionai iruhe,-1ucr. [-iacl iiu e r:eLoiseLl ltis irtr{lrot iti'

\
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proporly as per the requiremcnts 'an1i tirligirtir+rs of his job then lhe allcgr'il sc;tr.l.t

rvoultl huve been stoppecl. In tact lttr i'iiilurc ilr thc part 6['thc pretitirltlcr No.J ttr

exercise his authoritv as per rules linlc ilnti aglrin tends to show lhat he rvas lirlll'

involve6 in the alleged scam along u,itir other oriicial accuscd in the rettlstrcc.

3(r. l'hLrs, based on the above discussioti we are prima facie ol'the vierv tltal

thelc are reasouable grounds t0 connoct the pctil.ioner No.3 to 'the ol'l'cttsc i';t

u,hich he is charged.

37. Furthsrmore" he has not been able to point out irrty n-ralafide on the |lti"l ol-

thc NAII and as such the interim pre ai:l'est bail granted in lrctiticxrer Nrr.3 b-v thi:;

Court by order dated l6-08-2016 is hercby recallcd.

lB. Petitioner No.4 in CP D. lS2312016 is Khan Muhatutnittl Pirz:rtla

(Accused No.5 in the reference) who at the time of the allegeti scatn wits Cust(illl'-rr

x Service ltelationship otficer at UBL Naushehro Feroz

3(). Learned counsel lbr petitioncr No.4 subrritted that thc pctiii<rnct No."i rvrr';

cornpletely innocent of any wrong doing and that he had becn thlsell iitllllicll,. tl irr

tlris matter by NAB on accoutrt of rnal;rfide. According to leacttcd ct,itttstri tlit:t't is

tro rnaterial against him, no tecovcl'y has been rnarlc firrttr hinr irrrtl ltt' lt:is tlol

signccl any incriminating clocurncnt.'fhus. according tc, hiur hc- rvas cltltplel,:1i

innerccut o1'any wrong doirrg arrcl his pr,: arrcst bail shoulcl be ccuflnnetl.

40. According to NAB the role of pctitioner No.4 was sintilar lo that ol'

petitioner No.1 in that in ell'ect he r.vas the branch ma[i]qet'. fle was also Custotllel

Service Relationship of'ficer at UB[, rvhich rvas dealing r.vith the pensions

\
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llaytrletlts ol tlre pc'trsioners' Pelifir'ricl' No'l ltas been gi'-'eir

Paragraph S of the refbrence rvhich stule; rtir tilldor:

"8. That the investigation report reveals that Accused No'5 / Khatt

Mriltammacl Pirzarla being customer services Relations oftlcci
(CSR) / Manager United llank Ltd. District Naushelrro Ferozc' in

connivance with accused No.2 & 3, received pension Payces

accounts only bilts from act:used No.2 & 3 and thereal'ter

prepared collection vouchers of other than actual beneficinries

account and enter the payees accounts bills/vouchcrs in the

accounts of accused No.l7 and 18. Theref'ore. accused No'5 is

involvecl in ernbezzlernent/rnisappropriation ancl u,iilfirll),,

intentionally, dishonestly, failed to exercise llis airtlxlrity to prtrvcul

the rendition of undue benefit rvhich he could havc prevL:llted b)'

exercise of his authority. Accused Nb'5 illegally elcpositetl in thc

account of Jameet Ahmed Babar / Accused No.17 i0ttr petlsitltt

payees accounts bills amounting to Rs.1.57.i4'5 l4l- (Orru Crorr-

Fifly Seven Lac'l.hirty Four Thousand Five Huldretl l'ourtccn ()rtlv)

and also illegally deposited 20x pension payees bill in thc :lccollrrt

of Gtrulam Hyder Moro / accused No.l8 t() thc ltttre r)l-

Rs.96,68,946/- (Ninety Six Lac Sixty Eight Thousand Nino llunilrctl
an<l Forty Six Only), total Rs.2,54,03.460i- (f'rvo Crores FillY l"otrr

Lac fhree Thousand Four Hundred and Sixty Only). 'l'here ible the

accused No.5 acted in furtherance ol comlnon intention / in

conuivance and conspiracy rvith accused'No.2 to 3. l7 & 18 antl

involved in misuse of his authority, misappropriaticln and elnbezzlctl

amount to the tune of l{s.2,54,03.4601 (Two Crores Filiy Fottr Lac

Three Thousand Four I-ltrndred and Sixly Only) and ,;aused k.rs:i lo

the national exchequer."

4l . The petitioner No.4 rvas dealing u'ith the payment of pensions to pr:ttsionr-:r:r

arrd as such could onll' authorize pa)'ments to pensioners horvcvr,r {hr' tecot'tl

slrorvs that he deliberately authorized payment to Janteel Ahntcd Btbar' /

Accused No.17 (who is an absconder in the reference) l08x pensiotr pil)'ccs

accounts bills amounting to Rs.l, 57, 34,514/- anrJ illegally deposited 20x

pension pnyces bill in tlre :rccount of Ghulam Hyder Moro / accuserl No.ltJ

(who is ar.r absconder in the reference) to the tune of Rs.96, 68,946/. Rotli rillhe:re

wcf c private pcrsons and NOT pensioners and petitionor No.5 rvottlil ltrrvc

l<nown that on &orrourt of his positiou and role and the lact lliat tite puttsit,ttct':; lr;ttl

\
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to ploduce their p;nsion books lirr llayment yet he illegally authori;.:cil {rn Inatty
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occaSiOpS ltliir; lvAS trgt a onc oli accidertt or nristake) payllrrtll' lL) I\'!() pll\/alc

pcrsulls (beneliciaries) ivlro \r'o'e n()t entirter! to the sanle. In our viell'prilla lacic

this was a clcar urisusc ttf authoriry otr his part rvl-rich was delibcratelv atttl

intenrionally clone in connivanceicolh.rsion rvith the ottrcr oftrcial accusecl irl thc

refereuce which caused a loss to the exchccluer and as Such in our vie'lv tlterc- i:i

prima tacie sufflcient material on record to oonnect hitn to tlte ol'fettsc with ivhicll

he is clrarged.

I

12. l:nrthermore, the petitioner has not been able to shorv any malalicle <ltt tltc

part olNAB. fur tact the initial complaint was agairrst accttsed No. I rvlto lrelonglctl

kt NBP whereas the pelitiottcr No.4 was etuployed by LjBl, r^rhich is rt clcrrt'

indication that his involvernent in thc alleged scam onlY carne to light rlttrirrll

NAB's inquiry/investigation and hc has not bceu involved lbr trralallde reils()rls

43. As such siuce there has been tto malafide on tho part of NAB and in our

( r,iew since there is suf'ficient rlaterial on record to prima facie connect thc

petitioner No.4 to the Comrnission of the oft-ense his pre arrest bail grantcd by

order o1'tlris court dated 27-04-2016 is hereby recalled

44. Petitioner No.5 in CP D. 3694/2016 is Ahmcd l(hart Solangi (At:ctrsc,tl

No.9 in the rel'erence) who at thc tilr.re of thc' conrrrission of the otfense was tht

cashier at NBP Bhiria

).

45. According to learnecl counsel lor petitionet l',1o.5 he had no toie, t0 play in

thc: allsgsil scam. l-Ie was simply a cashier whttse job rvas to pay sanclioned

cheques and nothing urore aucl tlrat at a ruinimutn his case is onc ol'iirrthcr ittclttti'r

and as such he is entitlccl to lrave his pre arrest hiul co:rllrrned. Ilc did not pleud

anr malatirles ol the part ol'the NAB.

Y
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'q lb Petitioner No.5 has been given a specific role at pata 12 of the reference

rvhich states as utrdcr

I

" 12. 'Ihat the investigation rcpod rcveals that Accused No' 9 / Alrtncrl l(lrrtn

Solangi, cluring f",i, in"u*t'"ncy as Cashier' National Bank ol Pakisl:trr

(Bhiria City Branch; 
- 
ni't'i"i Naushehro Feroze in cotutivatrcc atrd

oonspiracy *ittl o""ur"tiNo'i' ro,r:'Zo to 63 by misuse o['iris atrthority

hept rlisbursing the amou't' tnniit'utlnsly' illegally and repeatedly into

the account, or o..ur"J-No't:,ZO to 63 without scrutiny aud failed to

prevcnt grants/renclilion' of iUegal benefits' thus accrtsed No'9 by

misuse of his autho.itf "r,,.oa 
losJto trre nationar cxchcq,er-" (boltl)

x

:\T.AtthisstageitisworthrnentioningthatthepetitiorrerNo.5rvasworkingirr

thc small 4 llran NBI' Bhiria branclt uncler the managetnent of petitioncr No' I

(accused No.l) in the reference. It is true that he rvas a junior banhing ol'tlcial

httrvever l.re \.v0uld still have been alvlue o1' the bank's "linow yollr ctlstolll'rl"'

policy. He woulcl also have beert arvare since he was actually handling thc

lrillsicash/cheques that the moncy which was heing paid was ol govcrnlnellt

lllol]el/pay,ableitrrcspcctol.perrsiotrs.I{ervouldalsohavebeenawaretlratthc

petlsionerslracltoprodttcetlreirpcnsionbooksinorclertobepaitlatrtlthirltrttlv

pensioners rvere enlitled to bc pair[' ]r{otwithstantling this lte tontilrrr:rtly antl

rcgularly paid nroney into unautl-rorizetl accotlt]ts ancl he rvottld have !"'tttrrvtr lhat

thcsc transactions wele unauthorizecl ancl that the persons hr) lvas paying il l'(' \'\rcl0

not entitled lo Payment

48 ln addition his private accclttnt contains nttmerous hiqh valtrr': trarlstels itr

tcms o1- crcclits strclr as 9.75 lacs, .1.4 lacs tlld other lesser btrt rni:rc [t'etltrottl

transl'ers rvhich petitioner No.5 hts not been abl0 to cclequatelv ac'cotrnt ibr'

+9. Iu .rrr vicrv all thc above nratcritl u,ht:n lakcrt togc:thcr lcads tls to iltc

irresistible conclusiol thar pritna tircie lretititller No'5 as c:tsltit:r \\il) ln lcilStlc

^rl

)-
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with petitioner No. I in cotitrding at r I ! c.r rt tn i'iill1. u'itl-t other ctl-acutlsctl ii\ r ''ilt : r' i 
' 
r'r:

ttris lrllegcd scam. I-Iad the pctitiorrer Ntl.5 olr.iccted to or questioned i't!]\, l]i t!.. ,1..

trar.rsacti<ins which he must have kn(tit'tt to lrarrc hecn illegal lht rrir''l"iiir"''r''l

scam woulcl l.rave been prevented at his blanch of NBP' [n our viclv irts ctrrldricl ;s

?r clear lailure to exercise authoriLi ir,ltich lcacl lo a loss to thc cxclrctlt!'"'! lrrr(l

which was carried out itl collnivauce \.vitil the other official acctLstri iit t;:ttlicttlirt

petitioner No.l and thus in our view there is prima facie sttftloicrt rllilct'iiri i)l)

rocord to connect him to the offense with wirich he is chargetl itt tlir-: rei'irtii'-:e

since there is also no malatides on the part of NAB we here'hY recai I 1)cilti'''ncr'

No.5's pre arrest bail rvhich rvas granted to hilr by this court thiotrgh otr!-rt riirleti

I

3 l-08-2016.

50. Petitioner No.6 in cP D.3800/2016 is Syed sabul slrilh ("\t'c li''rl l'lt; -''I

in the reterence) t'ho at the time ol' llte cot.tttnission ol'1he ol'{i:rtr'i: ' ; 'r "' iliL(i

Doctor aud a-s such \\as a Pensloner(

)'

51. Learned counsel tor petitionei No.6 sullmil.ted thirt petiririlt'--r' ':{r'[' i\:r'r 'l

retirecl docttlr of good standing rr.lrri collectecl ltis tnontlrly l'lLrll::ir-'lr i;''r'i: ih'' l;:ii:i '

I-le ncver checked his bank balance anci ctiti rrot receir"c aitr' tr;ittir ';i:t1r:rlii''r':l:; ll'

aclrnitted that large amounts in excuss ol'his pcrlsiotl hatl ltr'''-ii r-'":'l rirl'i lr '

accoult but submined that rhe petitioner N6.6 r,vas complcl.tri';rriji'1i'ti' ri 't''"ir

payntents lvhich q,cre ven'rapidll'moved irr atld ottt of his ar:';c'iit"1 11''"1rlilii:1 lrt

|i1r hc only became arvare of tire excess paylneuts rvhen h'.: iftr(i\.i'.i li i:ltli irll

tx)tico [ioln the NAB and this l'acr u'as lrrouglrt ttl his atterttititr l.ic :;ttlirilrlit:c.i tlr tt

ilhis trccount had been rrsed this hat'i lrcen illegally tl'rtrt: ht lif i-':1;r]' ;i'li':iril'r ''rril

l.rr: cornpletely unawarc of sttch urratttliorizcd transactl()nr
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rr 52.
.l'lre petitioner has bec:n giitrrr il siir.)'ifi( r'olli at ila[il-u,rapli ]'l iil' llrt

rel-efcnce rvltich states as under

"24. T'hat the investigation report reveals that accused No'21 / Sabul Shah

\,vas a pensioner and retired l)octor hy prot'ession and drawing illcgril

pension "payees accottnt only" bills ii his account in connivanoc witlt

accusedNo.lto4'ti'9,10&19'26xpensionadvicss/invoicesofotlter
lake/dummypensionerswerecrccliteclintriselcNo.lT6Tof.Nl]PBhiria
City Branc-h, Naushehro Feroze of Rs'61,01,865/- (Sixty. One l 'ac Ouc

Thousand Eight Ilundred and sixty Five only-) for rvhich he rvas. rrtrt legallt'

entitled and i*nvestigation report rurthcr revealecl that addilional lnore lirke

pensioninvoices/puy"",account]:illswereissueclittlrisnarnclirr.
ir".so,+o,rsql_ (rrfty six Lac Forty -rhousand'fhree llundred lrifiy Ninc

Only)*hirh*..tillegally'creditedinhisabovementionedacc'ottnt'
Therefore accused No.Z l- is involved in misappropriation of Govt' Funds as

beneficiary account holder, abettor and facilitator in cotmivance lvith other'

above mentioned accused persons to the tune ol'Rs l'17'42'224l- (One

Crore Seventeen Lac Forty Two ThousandTwo Hundted and Twenly Fottr

Only) which caused loss to the national exchequer'

I

I

(

53. Iretitioner No.6 is not a layman. I-te hacl servecl two .vciu's in tlre Arllry as at.t

qllicer (captail) ald thereatler hatl a lengthy careef as l)rr'ctor ilr (i()\'el'nltlt)lll

service where he retired in grade BI'S i9.fle can be regarcletl as a higlrlr etlttr':ittc''1

person. In his own petition he has admittecl giving lrlarrk oheques trl 1'tclitirrti'';

Noliaocuse<J No.l Muhalnrnacl Aril'Tcevno the l.rrirnch lltanagel tt'l'tl]l] Ilhiii'i

which to our tniud tvas corlplelely trnwarranted arld unexplaittablc lilr a tt.tritl ol

his education which he has failetl Lo provide any explanation fbr. Evctt otherrfi:;r:

lionl the record it appeals that he also hacl accgss tO his orvn clteqttc l"'t'l'

inclependent ol. accused No.l since sottre o['thc cheqttes art: writtetl b1' ltinr (i.'t'rtlr

words and tigures) whiclr cven tencls to coutradict tire stance r'vhich hc irits tlri<crl

i-e. he had no access to his cheque l'rook which he had given to the Nlarragcr ol

NBP Bhiria (accusetl No. I). lt also xppears firjtn his bank slatclllcnt that lalge

Sums olmoney rverc rcgularll'trirrlsicp"ed itr artcl oti! of iiis persclral barrk acci)trrll

ar NBP fiorn 02-01-20 l6 to 16-0?-20 l5 (arouncl the timc Nhcn th'; allerreil seirnr

r\a.s uncovered) tvhich anlounts to a period of around olle .1€OI and six :;l(lntirs' lii
til
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our\.ie\\.bearinginmindhisurtexpl:liltr:tiitltriitncalledlbrh;rnrli'i\"l\"''1'r1[r!;lirl'

chequestoaccusedNo. l,considetinglii:;level 'rt-etlucation'thelolr;':litlit 
1r'':ril.'tl

duringwhichregularlyillegaltransacti..ritsweremadeinhisa0cotri.rl\vhiclrirr

total reached over one crore rupees an'i his othen'vise frequent us€ 'rf 
lrill rtccor-tnl

petitionerNo.6wasfullyawareot(ireailcgcclscamandwasincotillir.liltc:errith

accusecl No.l in perpetuating it ancl as suchin our view there is ptitrrir l'ic

sutllcient rnaterial on record to connec( petitioner No'6 to the oltenso rvittl lvl"llr

l.rehasbeenclrargerl.Sincethereappearstobenornalatjdeonthepiirlol]''l;\}iihc

irrtcr.itrrpreal.restbailgrantedtopetitionerNo.6bythiscourtislrcrcl.,yreclrllcr.i.

54.PetitionerNo.7inCPD.4555/2015isGhrrlamAsgharRai;rcrii\ct.ti:ictl

No.l0 in the ref-erence) who ai tlre time of tlre commission tri tllc (}f!L'lls(:1\ll}t

classitlecl as an agent for accnsed I to 4 and other beneliciaries in tltr' tt'li-'l'r-'rl'''r'

55. I-earned counsel for petitioncr No7 ,Jenied that petitionel' No i' \vii ' irli 'r1 {:r1r

olanyone. Ilather he was simpll'an art school teircher rc'cciving il si!liiii r;l l't'rl tllti

RS 70,000 per month. He had nothing to do r,vith any I)A0' barlkc'i i'11 ir"r!- iiL' 'rr\

rvho was an accused. He denied that he owned any land' I-le si;hltriliir..l ill'i; ilr|

malaficle on the part ot'NAB rvas evidertt from tire fact that the)' irird r'i'' 11'r1t''; t 't'

iil the ret'erence against hirn rvhich rvas registcred by him iri l(ilL \Lirr('ii \\/ir:'

tretbre the period of the ofl'ense tnentioned in the ret'erence antl wils i'rrll lttlLtl';isetl

out 0f any illicit funds as alleged by NAR oll accotlnt ol'ltis it-trrlii'r':lltt-i'1 i" tiii:'

alleged scam. For all the tlbove reasons he subniitteri that pctiii''rrr"ri r'"j1r' ' i"'ir:

entitled to have his pre arrest bail conlirmed'

i6 nrat petitioner No.7 has bcen given a spccitic role in tht: i'si'i:J':ilt:t': i)i iliti'il

(

ll rvhich states as under

v/1



T

2l

..13. ]'hat the ir)\rr:::1iga1iOn report reveals ilrlit el Ittsctl

No.I0/Ghulam Asghrrr ftajper. uit"d ut an ageut 'ri' l)iitriut

Accout.tts Otficer Naushehro ljerozc' National l]anl; ol [);ll':islrrn

(Bhiria City Branch) Nausherltro Feroze and bencficiat'ies 
" 

:lt't''ttsctl

No.l l, l3 and 20 to 63 and illegally, unlarvfully collectcci Goril' llrrd

which was unlawftrlly credited in the accounts 'lf itrlcttsecl

No.l I,13,20 to 63 thkc i durnmy pensioner and non-pettsion':rs tc'

the tune of Rs.1,33,53,3241- (dne Crore Thirtl' Threc l.'ac l"'iltt'

Three Thousand Three Flundred Twenty Four only). TItc ilccrrsetl is

involvedinthisolTenceasanagent,abettor,conspir:r!'orltswell
as instrumental to misappropiiate the embezzleti irlnottnt til'

national exchequer an.l the'accused also acquired gains dtrri|lg this

periocl in the f'orm ol 84 Acres 25 ghuntas agriculturai litnd itl ltrs

name in Deh Syed Shu.ia, l'appa Qaisar Mari, -ltrluka Nleitrabpttrr

District Naushehro Feroze while accused also possessr-:r! 'l'0votll

Corolla model 2012 (AYV-488) 2013 (BBD-59C) 20i4 (BBQ-l't0)

which were acquired during 01.01.2014 to 3l'08'20 1'5 anti catrsctl

loss to the exchequer".

-1

(

51. According to NAII the petitioner No.7 enjoyed a good rcit,ti|[sirip tr'itll

the ofllcials of the DAO in panicular Nizamuddin Solangi tllr. Sr'rir r"cc()ttrilrrrrt

DAO aud accusecl No.3 in the reference) and petitioner No. I {asctrscti No. I in ltrr-'

refcrerrce) rvho was manager oI NBP Bhiria and his moiltls.rl;urilittli hil'; l(t

illegally alcl unauthorizedly ct'rllect bills tiom Nizamuddin St:larrgr (;r.:r':i:etl No 1|

lvhich he would provide to h4uhan-rmed Arif Teevno (accu:-'ed. Nc ! ) tlrt: Nlll'

branch tnanager wlro would tlren change the bills and pay riicm inltl rtcc{ltttils ill

beneliciaries rvho were not entitled tc receiv-e such firncls tn<J r::, srteli hc t';;ts

acting as an agent on their behalf.

58. Flis bank staternent shorvs l.hat he received large amounis b) u'a,' ot liii'rsii'r'

strparately cln a regLtlat'basis atnttunting on each occasion to allt(lililis 'rl atoii:ttl l'l

1a.:s, 5 lacs,3.3 lacs,6.6 [acs,4.6 ltrcs. l2 lacs etc in arlditroti to ltis tl!(,;llhl', '.il,ll ,'

rvhioh hc was cornpletely unable to account lbr, A Form Vll rvhicir i'; lllitct:.,.i ott

iiic..record also shorvs tris lantl holding purchased during the tirnr: (ii il!L't,lir:1ir,L\

allegedintlieret-erence. Itrvasalsorevealedthathepurchascti ttct,tr.ri i:t{-:lli \1,ill}ill

the period r:j'the ol-fense and that he cven bought anothor r:<lrolla r:rtt'tlti: cttsl ot'

, . ',.i,\il

I



\r.hich he. coul(t n()t account lirr. [,ilr,'i,;:;, r-jl:r.1i Olchecks brottgltt on rt:eotd qltoit'

that the petitionerNo'7 u'as' continll{)ilsij' i!ra*itit'' cash cheques liolr lris aceolttlt

from the prirna lacie ill gotten titncls us :trerrtioued above' Page 2tt3 olthe

Investigation Report (llt) also cl,:rri'lt it,riior''es that accttsed No'I I lpeiitioircr

No.2 -the rvife of petitioner No. l/rr,..t:ti:.:,-:t1 ].Irl i) lrad transflerrer] I(S 12.0{).()(X) illto

pctiliorrer No.7',s acL:oul1t rvhich rvr:,tt. ttili:r1:lirittccl and shou's iu ortr vicu' ths clt'se-

nexus [-retr,veen petitioner No.l/acctrst:,,! I'ic,.l lltrd petitiolter No'7 (r'l'hich is tirrtlter

corroborated by the s.161 statemeill ol'Zr-riri:i,-Ahmed Jamali) and lris i111r61lvs11lt:tt1

Wlretr rve also consider the S'161 stal'ements ol

/

in this alleged scam as al1 agent'

Mst Safia Abbass, and Wazir Ali, Sajjad Hussain, Mst Kaneez Aklrtir'

_/,

Mul.ramrned Karim, Mst lmmazadi and Consirler ihe othcr nraterial tilettlioltctl

above against the petitioner No.,i itr a holistrc illanller tl'c have j()n'lt't(i ilru

iffesistiblc conclusion that thcre is printa tacie sullicient material otl rcct'Ltl lrr

connect petitioner No.7 to the oI'lbtrsc rvith which he has bcett cltari''cd iir thc

re l'erence

5t). We also do not find the mention ollhe cctrolla car tarly it-r lhc crttne pL'r'ltt(l

as rnalat-rde on the part of the NAB rvhen considered'.ri[h alt ihc olhor rrta'rc|ial

againstthepetitionerNo.Trvhichhasbeenplacedonrecord.[.hus.wc]llrtlttt,

nralaficle on the Part of NAB-

60. 'lhus, since there has beelr no rnalatlde oil the par:t ol the NAI]:ttttl it,lu rrr''

olthc view that there is strflicicnt rturterial oll reoord to uollilcet tlie potitiorrcr l'lti'i

\vith the ol"fbnse lvith rvhicl he is charged rve hereby i'':catl his itltelitrt P[t:rrl!:i

bail

61. Petitioncr No.8 in cP D.3.195/2016 is Atrdullah Nagore (A',it:ttsr:tl No'7

in the ret'erence) rvho at thc tinlc t,i'the C0mmission ol'the ot'tcrrse \^';rl' l);tlr

I

w
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processing assistafrt DAO Naur(jslto Feroze. lu urauy wit-vs tltis 1'; np irt'l'sl]o'tt ttl

drc rnain case as it concerns the illegat opening of salary accutulls rrrrtl lhe illcgzrl

payment of salaries to 2 ghosl teashers (Mst 'Murk accused No'50 antl Saiiicl Ali

accused No.54 bothof rvhom have absconded) which is a part of the c:ase

ctltrcertringlrisboss(Sye<lsaadatshalraccusedNo.6intlrerelferencc)wltiliscrir

post arrcst bail and lvhose casc is tlealt with later in this order'

62. Learnod counsel tbr pctitioner No.8 subrnitted that his pcsition o['atttltot'itv

in thc DAO hierarchy rvas nluch lorvcr than had been ascribed to hinr by thc NAI)'

Accortlirrg to lrirrr lre rvlts only a clata processing entry operat()r ,"v[rc;tlc :itllc rtllc:

was to input data rvhich l-re receivecl tiorn his boss (Syecl Saatlat 5i1xh nuL:tlse(l

No.6 $,ho. as [rentioned carlier. is ott post afrest bail aucl rvhosc r:asc is tlcall u'illt

latcr in this order) and as such le ]rad no iileil as to why certaitl llsrs()l]S itcctttttits

rverebeingopeneclanclu'hytheyr'veretleingpaidantlwhcthcrornotilrc\wt)l'c

ghost employees. l-lc subnrirted that this intbrmation rvoultl havs ber:tt l'ittltvtt by

his supcrior (accr"rsccl No.b Syed Saatiat Shah) but not hirn' I-le lriltl rlt) ittlth()rit\' 10

issttcatrycheqtresarrtlltirtltrcrrcrletoplayinchcckingpeople"s,itlentit.v-,rlrrr,ltcllter

tlre.Yrvereerrtitlecltopa),nlenttlrnot'.rlrus,accotclingtclhirrtlrcrvir'sctltttlliet,:ly

irrnocent ol'any wrong tloilrg and lris prc arrest bail shotrld [Te coul-trtrlcd'

63,ItressencepetitionerNo'S,stlefcnseistopassthelrucliilrrttlltisl-rtlss

accusecl No.6.The petitiouer No.8 howevet has beeu given a specilic rolc' ilt the

reference at pilra 10 rvhich statcs as ttnder:

I

(

I

"10. That the investigation report reveals that accused No'7 /

RtrOultan Nagorc, cturirfu his incumbengy as Data Eutry ()l]erator'

District Accounts Olfic-"e, Naushehro Feroze in cottnivatlcre rvith

accused No.2, 6 ,"r.o,Li ilre salaries of accused 56'56 g -54 in

connivallce rvitlr each c,tlrer r,vithout seeking FC)-2 tbrrn liorrr tlrc

Education Department antl allolved the fake lDs to withdraw salaries

v '/
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as \/ell as ilk:gal pcnslr)n ilflvees bills to accused Nt'r' 5O & 54 li't

which they $'erc not (lt.llill'rd as being ghost tcaclicrs' thcre ttxu'

accuse(l N1,.;t;; n.i,",,..ti,' cu,.l,iva.tci with accuscrj No.f nllti {-'

reluased salarics ol'aocu:ictl N'l'50 & 54 by changing' data ol SAI'

systetn"ffAoNauslrelrroFcttszeandwithoutseekingf,OFtlr.ilt
tl-tus accused No'T tailetl to exeu'ise his authority.and rendcrr:rl

illegal beir-eir"'-tu o""t''ed 5o &' 54 and caused loss tc tlic'

erchequer-"

(l4,PetitionerNo.tlr,vasatro{licerol.tlrcDAoarrdt}ssuchltcl.lccrii.itt

litluciary responsibilities while dealing with the payment of Governtnent futxls' Ill

ottr view it is too simplistic sirnply to sa)'that he lvas a data imputer ortlv arrti irll

thercsporrsibilitiesresteclontlresltorrltlerstrlhissuperioraccrrsedNrl.6^Itrrrttr

vicrv the nraterial on record shows that he wirs more than a simplc clata pLoct:ssttt'

and that he rvas fully i*volved in certain aspects of the alleged scatl.t rvhich lrc

could have preventecl had he trot t.uisttsed his authority or tailecl to exercisc hir;

authority. ln this case fi.om the rnaterial plar-;cd before us it is apparent that tl rv:ts

lrclvhoopet-reclthetlvofaketcacl-rersoccou}lts(Mr.SajidanclMsMtrrli)tlrrtrrrglr

his own cont-rclential log on number rvithout vr:rilying theiL F'0 2 lornrs i'cthitt

theywereinthctenrployeesoltlteecluciditlnclepartnrent.Tlrerea{tcrlrccontitttrcrl

topaytheirnrorrthlysalnriesrvhiclr,uvalcollcctedb.vghostctlrployees(t:cgrrsut!i()

arrd54)whowerenotrvorkinglbr."lrecducationclcpafttrrent.[ntrttrviul'vlltcrc{.rl'c

tlrel.e is prirna facie sulficierrt tnar.erial to conllcct the petititlrrer No,il rvitlr ti-:u

ol-tbnse for uhich he lras been charged throtrgl-t ltis connivance attd collttsit')ll i|''i1h

aor.:usecl No.6 and through his misuse o{'authorit.v or t'ailure to cxercise arttlt<i|ii}

u,hicl] crlulcl have prevented this off shoot rlf the main scaur' He has trot pleatier]

l.rralalkles on the part ti)iNAIS atrcl on the face of the record there does not itl.tpciir

to bc any hence his pre arrost bail is rccitlle''l'

I
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65.PclitionersNo.9and10inCPtl.379l/20i6areNIst.JirnnatKhirtoon

anrlMstJatrralan(AccrrsedNo's62arrel63respectivell'intheretcrerlcc)\\lh()ll1

thc time of the cc,mlnission of the ol'I'ense were pensloners'

66. Learnecl counsel for petitioners 9 arrd 10 submitted tliat thev Vvere both

ler.nale pensioners who letl it to the bank ofticials to pay in their monthly pensic'rn

and oltcrate their account in this fespect. 'that in essence tlteit' acctrrtllts hael lrcctt

itlegallyuseclbl,tlrebankofficialsintransferrirrgtlloneyarrdtlrey\ryercullawill.{.)

ol'these transactions and had no knowledge that any tt'ansactiofls r'vere being

carried out illegally in their accounts'

67. '['he ctrses against both these petilioners is that they are allegett bcnetictarics

of the scam. Although tlieir roles are similar to that of petitionerNo'6 (tlteil rolc:s

can be lounci at para's 65 artd 66 oi'tirc retbrence whioh lvc d() not intertd to sot otlt

since it is largelv tlre satnc as thltt trlpetitio[er No.6's rvirich was set ollt earliel irr

this orcler whilst tlealing rvith his case) therc is a pointed diflbrencc itr thcir t-'ascs

arrt| tlrirt ol petitioner No.6 Syed Sabtrl Shalr (wltose pre i}rrest ball we ila\.,i:

r.ecalled earlier in this orcler). '[he cliffbrence being that they are urttch lcsi

erlucated I'ernales. ln both these cases it appears lo us that petitiorrers 9 an<l l(i

rvere relatively urneducatecl wotren (illiteratc even) who placcd their trttst in llt'-'

bank rnanager (petilioner No.l/accusecl No.i) in dealing with their pertsiorrs' lt is

clear that variotts tratlsactions ttlok lilace in thcir aocoullt in connccti<)u $'itrl

rnonies r,vhich they were not entitled to. Llorvevcr. it appears to tts thitt at tltis stirg'-'

--,.,,,.pri,ro facie there is not sullicient tnal.erial on recorcl to sholv that the-v" ktleltv thirt

their accounts were being unlawrulli usecl r:r ltad zlny reason to believe st) l;t't

example, they u'racle no big rvithtlrarvals in their natne and according to NAll tltci(.r

hrrs bee[ ntt particular uplili in ttrerr livilg standards on accottttt tll' tltc allr:gctl

,(

{

v



u38

I

jt)

scalll. It may therefore be that their accounts and themselves (being relativc:l1

trtreducated and inexperienced iri bankirLg af{hirs) were simply unlvittingly used as

ttlols in order for the banking oUicials i.() carry out the alleged scanr. Ir.r atldition

thc1" 31" regularly attending lhe trial prcrecedings. As such at this stage we considcr'

this to be a case of furtlrer enquiry and although malaficles has ncrt beerr

specilicallv plead by the petitioners, in onr view based ou-the lhcts ancl

circuustances of the case of these trvo petitioners, it conld be inrpliecl to tlte exlerrl

that the NAB fhiled to realize/consider/investigate to tind out that thesc w()lnel.l

were illiterate female pensioncrs who had no knovvledge of banking alrl blindly

placed their trust in the banking otlicials. Even othenvise we corrsider tlral irr trLrr

discretionary constitutional .lurisdiction ancl in the interssts ol' iustice: rrntler tlrc

above circutnstatrces rrye clo not consicler that it woulcl nteet thc crrtls ol'.ir-rsticc to

recall lhc interim pre arrest bail granted ti-r both tlrese uneducatecl wornerr

llctitioners and as such the pt'e arrcst bail grantecl to pctitioners 9 irn,l I0 is lte r.,-:bi,

crlnllrmed.

(rll. Petitioner No.ll in cP D. 43}6fi6 is Mst. shazia paneerr (Accrrs:crl \ir

2(r irr the retbrence) rvho at the tirnc of the comrnission ot thc oljtnser rvas :r tunrilv

pensloner.

69. Withotrt going into detail rve consider that she is in a vcr.y :;irriilar p6:;ili<,p

ttr petitioners 9 and l0 above and has bcen ascribed a sirnilaL rrrle in thc rclercur:r,:

at piu'a 29 (narnely as a beneliciaq'). She again is a lacly ol'limitetl erlLrcation rvho

Qlllrustcd tlre bank oflicials to deal rvith lrer pension ai'fairs wiro acecrrclirrg, ro 1cr

evcll torc 3 leaves out of her pension book lor their owrr usc irtrl rrrist.rsc:rl hcr.b;lrrii

accotlllt without lter authoritv by getting hcr to sign blank chequc-" tvhiclr thc1, latcr

tilicd in as they pleased. She does not secln to havc personall-1, lrcneljtecl l.nlur tlrc

{

!
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illcgal tlarrSircrionS ir: hel acc,rrr:,1 Llit{l l,i{lf(} d0as t?Ii rl(,r--lTi ti, hi]!c i.:rr:r:!l irtri plili

itt lter living standards sirir:c: L!rl:1lr(:c!)ii1r,) r;.l il:.: t:i-itlt i{clr..r: \r,t: iiiir.i h,,r ,r,.;srtir,rr

to be sirnilar to lhat oJ'pct jlioi,.:i:, !) ri"rii it,r .:i:rii ,r.: s,ti:il r:r:l.ii.i$(i to tiir l:rirrr; rcli.,t

alld as such her interirn pr,.i arrc:.I Luril i:i l,rrct,1..,.]11]jii-,itc(i.

7(). l'etitioner No.l2 in tlP t).3710116 is Irrrii;ls r{li idaliroro i.,\ur.:rr,irc ftrr. ,,

in the retLrence) \vil() ill. th,J iiloc oJ'lh{.' fi,rulnis:iioir r.il'th; lifii_11r1. ,,,,i1:. .r itr}l!r (.

oltficcr rvhcr was dra',r,ing;icn.riitrr ?s ,i,rr;rr.,.iirr: i.

ii.in()cent cll a.ny tvr,Jnit tlltril anci sitrit-.i_v iii r,\.r, ,.ir.lisir,,l oil trr-lrlii .r, 1,, rr\.j,r,i ..

-t1. The petitioner lra.. iret-'n pivcn u spcci'iic 1,,1.:ir, tlii, r:,-.;.rlr,is.;i;l , r i 

. 
1 i , : 

. 
r-. . 

. 
1 , , r

itt Para 27 ol'the rcrcrencc wJrir:h',r,e il,.r nc,t irr,:illl i,i reilr,l.l.,(.^ rrr {i;r ,,r.,.1r.r ,r,,! is

:;jtr,tlltr tt; itctiliorrt:;.f.io.ti Si,t.:ri l,nhul Sli;rir,:, r,ri., :iy i,,li:lr. ,; 5,.,..1 ri..r... , r ,.,,

lil,,:!lc,i:jr)irin rvllo:je (:i"tsc .,iit:i rlil;crr:;scii t. lt.ii*1.tr! !ii!:i i-,i.r1;f. lir.. l. .r i.r,ii ,. ,lij,,,

lioiiliirl ;.t i)osiii(rri rrl' rr:-;l;ii:rsiirilltj ,lrrrl ;,. ti.; ,,r..,1i ;I1-.*1,1.;;rrii_t i r.!; t.,.1;r,. r,

if:1il:;il( i!(,!i:., [)e:;lttru :tilr:r:crJi.,. r-r,]1,;Ca:r:j: 1..,..r:.;i,rl. ir{ il ( 
I I . .l j. i.l i i, , I l;q, 1.;,,,1,.....ii.., t! ,

:..irtglc pic.r..l t,.riti'i-iai ir)::ht;,,,,, lhSt iiu..,\.ir, it .lr:.1ri:i-!. ,t1 :i.rrri.rtr_,il ._.,,,,1,,.; ;, ,il.Li,.Lr . ..

irarl ltr-v' rtLitltil|itY it, rr:,:tji\';: tlriynr(:r'lt .!i:r ,r i.tr,.itrril,rr t iii;ii rr.r:; r.,.,.:-ri iiir..:1 :r,, ,,, ,1

.r(:( ()ulr1.. lli'' lrcct)ritt 0pcir;irt: ii,t,-l; :irrirr', tli::i i:,.: l,i .i i,-. j,.;i,1,- .r.,rr ,. i , ,, .

'rllir:ial lt11tl tllere (!.:1.' llit]]!i-:r,:]ir;i ,.rhrl(rut.i l-,.,-,rrll;..-. l,.r p111i.,-ri [rli:i'ir;:) ;.i, I;l,,;,,;1I;,.,.

:trtC irt h!s r\,tititgshot,,irt!r.,rilltrir.ir,,,1l:; rr: i:-rr.r:il;li itrrr]5ri1:1,;1-ry,ur i:,...r1 i.,,,j;,,tiir,,.
."'--:--''lii.;:.:sarl[r'y.'. ln irrldil,i(]n l.hiri.c;rr.c.rlro i;,r.,,,ir1 iii;.iir;...l!rr.jry, l E li:i:.: , .!r:.r::. ,,.

lat:s. 1.7) iacs. t. . liic,.. .-l.I ilrc,r. I .;(r i,i.-.s 111r.; 5;..r11i.11r; i..j, rt,l:1,.1, l;1r.. rr,,., .r,,. ,

r'rIi11111q41. l'r'intil ll,c,ir.,tlr,:r,r.liii.l",,r,r{. t)ii.t r.;i'ili,- r,i1,,", I;r.1l.r:i1:r."- !l: ;r,;.r.,. ;;.,.,i rr,.ti,.r.r: i

,(

I
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on record to connect the petitiont:r to tlrc allcgcti lrt:itln' Tht- irctili*lri:' iras lr.l irltti

mrlaficles and as such his pre arrest baii ir; hereb.y rccalled

7i. l,etitioner No.l3 in cP D. 449212016 is Mst Aieeban (Acr-usetj Nc 46 ttr

thc rel'erence) who at the tirne of the commission of the olfense ',vas dritrvittg

pension.

74. Without going into cletail we consider that she is in a very'sinilar'1:,osiliorr

to petitioners 9 and l0 above and has been ascribed a similar role tu thc ie l-ert)ttce

at para 49 (namely as a beneficiary). She again is a lady ol'limrted etlttcaiion q'lttr

entrustcrl the bank olficials to deal with lier pension affairs \.vhr) rlifitlsu(l itcr banl'

account without her autlrority and linowledge by getting her to sign bianli chet;trcs

u,hich they latcr fillcd in as they pleasecl. She does not seeln to ltitve persotrally

bene {ltcd li'om the illegal transactions irr her account and there dit(:'r tltti scell! t')

havc heen any uplift in her living standards since the inceptiorr oi'thc crini':. I letrt r.'

wc liutl her position to be similar to that of petitinners 9 an,.l lL) aud as sttt:lt

entitlecl 1o the same relief and as such her interim pre urrcsl bnil r:; hulcl.rt'

conllrmed.

15. Petitioner No.14 in CPD.348/2016 is Nizamuddin Solangi lAcrirscd Nlt,

3 in tlte rel'erence) who at the tirne of the cornmission of the r:fltnse wa:i [l'rc suh

Accorrntanl at the DAO

76. Learncd counsel lbr petitioncl No. 14 admitted that petitiriner l'1,-r lri lrarl

been involved in the alleged scam but submilterd tirai it rvir-s il lilSe ()t conll)l{)li-'

malatides on the tr'rrt of the NAI] in that NALI had let oll'lnan1,irlrsons ,,vh(l (|uitht

\."''!

I
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to have been made accused and had olr(:i;ric(i {)1'} ,l,iiScfitninatOr-r' llir-'i''lrt'i';lit'os'.

['rasisandassucl'tlrswasentitledtoltaveitisl'ttaii'-stbailcotrlir:rteti

TTPetitiorrerNo.l4wasthe2ndttrostseniorofficerintheDAobcingsub

accountant tluring the scam. His ha-s bet'rr asriilrned a specific roh: at Parlr 6 trl the

rel-erencervhiclrsincehelrasadrnittedhisinvolvementinthescamweililntltscc

tire need to set out in full which cau be retbrred to in the reference il treeil bc'

TS.ltratryevent,notwitllstanditiglrisadrrrissionoftlieol1.eltse.ijrltrrtlr*:

rnaterialplaoe<lotrrecordbytheNAl]whichwehaveperuseditsocrrrstlrlrttlrc

scanrbothstartedandendedrvithpetitionerNol4.lnourvievtlrefilatgriirltlti

record shows that petitioner No.l4 is one of the main accused irt this cust' williortt

rvlroseroletlrisscatnwoul<lnotlravebeerrpossible.llewasl-ltcp,:rsonil,lttl

initiated the list of the talie and part lake bills which were dulv signccl irv lrirrr rntl

giventoaccusedNo.lO/petitionerNtl.T(GhularrrAsltgalRaiper_'tlteagt:nt

rvhose is accused No. l0 in tlrc ref'erellce antl wltose itlteitttt Prt: ltrrcll llitii rvri'r

r,rcallecl earlier in this orrJer) to provide tt'l eccusetl Nt:li|e tiliottt't'

No.l(MuharnmadArifTeevnott.hoseprearrestbailwasrecallei!.:arlictirrthir;

order)beingtheNBPbranchmanage[atBhiriacitywhothenntaccslrtrrler.etlit

entries antl misused tlre accounts of a number of the lrenefictilr'v iloct]iictl itr lhc

rel-erence without their knowledge in collusion with accttssd No'9lPr:titior-rtrt' \Jtr'5

Ahrnecl Khan Solangi who was the castrier at NBP Bhiria city. iir'rrthcrttto|c rvltctt

the list of bills were returnecl tti the DAo by the NLIP rlirirr l"'r'ilntlt petttiortcr

No. l4 ltriled to ensure that tlie bills rvere reconcilecl atld thrts allr'u'ctl tlis ';citttt 
l('r

..,41:-,j:*lg8'-ut-rnoticed 
and indeecl florrrislr. t]lc tlrus both misusecl anrl liril;t! ttl ertlrctsu l.,i:i

o,,,no;,r, 
.lhere 

appears to bt: an abundance of <l.cnrrr.t:nlal'y evitlttrct: itnplit:ltt:'ir:'

4
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him in the otl-ense. Ijurtherurore nullior(')tls S.li.rl statemetlts inclttilirtq [llose t'l'

ArbabAliandMuiahidTanrvariiullyrrrrpticatchirnintheoft-ensc.

./c). With legarcl to his allegation ol nralafides it is l'or N'\ll aiier

incluirt,/investigation to detertnine lvho lttctc is llutficient evitlence agaillst to tttalic

Iru irccusetl. Iu our vierv sot.tle ollret's u'hcl ilal'havc hatl A lesser inl'olv etllr:tlt lrttt

againsl ivho there rvas Irrost [ikely insuificient evidencs ht5'e lreetl tnittle l'w's

rr,5. are liecessary to prove thc case against the accused itr lhc t'e lc|cllcc irll(l ils

suc,h wc tlnd no substattcc in the petilir-rner No.14's plca o[ rualafitles'

g0. Thus, since in our view. there has been no malaf-ldes on the part 11 NAIJ atr<l

tlrere is prirna facie suft'icient inaterial to connect petitionel No 1+ to thc <'l'l-ensc

tbr rvhich he has been charged rve herebl'recall petitionel'No. l4's ittlcrt'itit pte

arrest bail.

81. Having dealt rvith all the petitions seeking pre alI'est bail wc Irr)\v tttrtt [t-t

deal rvith those petitioners rvho have sought post arrest bail'

PETITIONS FOR POST ARREST BATL.

gl. petitioners No.l5 antl l6 in CPD.344112016 are M:rntlrar Ali lllranblrnr

aud Wajid Ali Baber (Accusetl No l5 and l6 respectively' iti tltc relclcrtcr:) $'lt<-

at the timc olthe cornrn'=rion gf tlre ollense rvcre lror.lr ()G lll (.)l'{ice:rs rvot'kitts ai

thc- rlain branch of NBP Nausheltrcr lietoz. Z\gaitl titis ePpc:at's t() l)o ltrt tll:illooi ni'

'' 
tlie urain pensions case since it conccrns two banli oi'tit:irrls tiutrl [lte tttiiiu lrritttt:ir

iliegaill,bcnefrring lvlumtaz Solangi (Acc-usect No.l4) ivito i:l;r tirir',:r itt thi

\.,,

I
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irrigationdepartmentwhoisalsotltrpostarrestbailinthiscaseandwhosecasc

s'ill be deall with later in this order

83. Leirrned counsel tbr petitioners 15 and 16 subrnitted that they simpll'

clcarccl bills rvhich they hacl recc:ivetl fi'ot1l the DOA rvhich hacl cortre viil (lrc

irrigation departntent in the ntrme ol Muurtaz Solangi (Acctrsed No'l't) ancl this

rvas thcir role as pcr banli regulations and as such tltey hacl noi cotntrrittcrtl an!

illegalit-v

84. [n support of his contentions learnecl counsel placed reliance on Dr'Allah

NawazA.QaziVStatc(2008SCMR196),NadeemMajidVState(2007SCMI{

1958) and Muhammad Anrin Quershi V State (2007 P'Cr't''J I05)

85 petitioners No.15 ancl l6 have been ascribed a specilic role in the re {crcnct:

at Para's l8 and 19 rvhich state as under{

"18. That the investigation report reveals that accused

No.l5 / Manthar Ali Bhanbhro being Officer Oc-lll NIIP

Naushehro Feroze in connivance rvith accused No'2' 3 anrl l'1

illegally cleared 2x credit advices / salary (issued in thc nitme

of 
*another 

person) in f'avor of accttsed No'14 and lls'5'

l2,7 l2l-g Five Lac Twelve Thousand Seven llr.rnclrerl attrj

"fwelve Only) rvas misappropriated by misustng his atrtlroril'y

by rendering unilue favor to accused No'14' Accused No l-i

taite,i to exercise his rruthority to prevent the grant rvlriclt

coulci have been presented by exercise of his authority alrrl

involvecl in misappropriation and misuse of authtrrity rvhich

resulted in loss to the national exchequer'

19. T'hat the investigation report reveals that acottsetl'

No.16 / Waiicl Ali Babar being Officer OC-III NBI'

NauslrehroFeroze/ClearingofficerofGovcrnlrrentbillsirr
connivance rvith accused No.2,3. 14 & l5 got received ancl

cleared 4x D-sheets Form No.15 ol'Government bills c'l'

Rs.15,49,6661 (Fifteen Lac Forty Nine Thcrusand Six

l-Iunilied and Sixty Six only) and creditecl ttre satne itr lhtr

accounl of accused No.14 illegally (instead o[ thc person irt
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the Government debit scrolls clealiy lioinls to their lnisuse tii lutltrrrilY"lirilLrlc to

erercise authority. I-llus. i1 ollr vlsw tfiorc is prirna l'acie sul'licitlrtt 1i1n1s1i11l orl

record to link the petitioners l5 and l6'to the c:otnmission o1'tlrt: ol nsc ancl as

such tlieir petitions lor post lrrresl buil art: ltereby dismissed'

88. Petitioner No.l7 in cI,D 3564/2016 is Mumtaz Ali Solangi (accttst'tl

No.l4 in the rel'ercncc) rvho at tire tilrc of the cotnmission oi".he ol'le'tlsc tl'as;t

t1ri.,,er o[' lrrigation Deparlruent, XEN Moro, Rohri Division who ]vas a l](xl

pensioner and u,as illegally extendeti unrtue benefit by petitioners 15 and l0

rurentionecl above (Manthar Ali Bhanblrro and Waiid Ali Baber)'

89. I-earnett counsel lbr petitioner No. l7 sutrmitted that hc rvas a tlrtvc:t'ii;l'tlt':

irrigation departnent antl fuacl only opened ole bauk account \tith Nl]l' trr ivlliclt

liis rnonthly salary of arouncl RS23.000 u'as paid alld lhat hc hittl trit o[ltcl iritttl<

account. lf he did have tnothcl'bank accourrt tirr:n this lrerd lretrtt ol]cttctl rllr:p,'Ill"'

b,v the XEN and lvas being used illegally lvithout his kn,;rvl:rtgi:. Ilt: srtlrtitillerl

that he was cotnpletely itrnocctit olan)'wrons doing and \\as tlot knol'r'ingly a lliit't

gl-anv allegecl scam. ln support of'his conterttions he placed reliance t'tl litc t.tsci

ol'Sarfraz Ahmetl V The Cltairman NAB (2016 PCr'.L'J P.7oi' 615n|t'nrarr NAIJ

v Nlulrarnnrcd Khalid (2016 sclMR 6761 and Mirbaz Ali F:rraz V Thc Statrr

t2016 P.Cr.L.J l43l ).

90 Petitioner No.l7 has been given a specilic role at para 17 of the reli;rerlcc

whiclr states as uuder:

I

{

..Para 17. l'hat the investigation report reveais that accused No.l4 /

Mumtaz Ali Solangi is a driver of Irrigation Departtnent, XF,N

Moro, Rohri Division r!; Moro is holding 2x salary accotrnts at NBP

Moro Branch an<t I{BL Moro and drarving huge ar:rounts olsalarl.,as

rvell as lake pension pa)'ees accounts only trill initiated by accusetl

No.2 & 3 and got clsared through accused No.t5 and l6 atnorrttlitril

t,r Rs.34.88,92t1- 1111iry Four Lac Eightl' Llight 1'housanrl Nitrc;

Hundred aud Trvelil,Oue Only) tbr rvhich he is rtot legllly ctttitlcrl
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theretbrc: uccrtsed hll i.i. i't iprrstvg( in t,li';;tirlrr olir ilttitrtt rrl

(ic'rvernrlenl flptls ip c()itilivitllc rvittr ac:cuseci Nil.l (\ l. l.i,rrrtl ltr
as absltor. {icilitator alLl u oll:illirirtr)r and trls,r lre urllr,iat'r tr t' tlt,:

abovL' amount for vrlrich ire rva-s not legally cntitlctl. 'l ittis. acctrse cl

No.l4 is involvetl in c()rriiptiol) ilnd coll'upt practicus lttrtl r:itttse tl losr;

lo the nationill exohc(ltl('r."

91. I-Iis is a pafi of the o{Tshoot ('ilse which ties in with Petitioners No.t5 artd

l6 irr CPD.344lt20l6 Manthar Ali Bhanbhro and Wajid Ali Btber'(Accrrsctl

No l5 and l6 respectively in the l'elilrcnce as discussed abovc) ivho at llie lilne ol

the cornmission of the ol'{'cnse welc lroLli UG Ill Officers workir)g :ri llle lnilitl

brarrclr ol'NBP Naushehro Feroz rvhti were the officers \viro rnad(r ille,gal anrl

authorized payments into pctitioner No. l7's accounts rvho case ili disr'its<etl above,.

92. ln petitioner No. l7's salary account tliere are 3 large payrner{s {}i'o\,er onc

lac rupees mixed in with his salary payments. When confrontcd u'herr: this monc-\

canre fi-orn he had no explanation. It r.las also revealed from tire rnatelial rrl rsct,xi

lhat he also had another account ia Habib Bank Ltd (IIBL). ll'ie inrrtt:rral on rce,irri

totally belies his claim that this account rvas opened by thc X[]N r.ritirt,rrt lri.,

knorl,ledge. The account opening details sho.,,r,that the account lrirs l',o$i ol:)utlc(i h!

hiln usittg his documents and signatures. Lar.qe arnounts ha\/e l.-,rtell ;x'tl irri,, hi:;

persr"rnal HBL account which he had absolutely no explanatiotr lbr. It:l:crris tlurl

the atrLhority to pay an illegal salary to hiu.i was forgecl tnosr lil.,cly iri,irirrr iir

conttivauce with petitioners No. l5 aird l5 and otficers ljrln tiir: l)AO,,iitrr.r: iii,:

cotrcetttetl petitioners 15 and l6 being trankers rvould have knowrr thar thc [) l:orrrr

$'as tbrged since they would have ltrrorvn that a'I'R 22 t^orm was t'cqrrir\r(l u,hiuir

.ffir.9ttbnvarcledtotlrer.trbutirlsteacltheiake.oD,'Fortrt.].heSi6isiitit:tltettlcl!

XEN Ghulalrt Hussain U.i.ian.also fulh,impl:c.rtes petitioner No.!7 iir rir.: o!lij115g

uhich reads rr rnd*.r 
, ,trh

I

r1

re
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"statentcnt of Ghula ln fll'",tli:: nn s/o Jan Mohnturrrc{l Ui"ij!4r-l-CU

0300-9319536 CNIC # 45303 -40{r6ll67-3, Designation: Ex

Iin I rri irtion De ncritt llohr i Divisio M oro R/o Wnrd ll 2
trcer st Mr.

Kanrliaro Town Talrrh:t Kirndia ln CS tion a allt

harrtmad Arif Teevn(i. Ex: Branch h{anagcr. IVlohamnrrtd Ali
Mo

usheht'o Ferozc, Mr.
Panhrv il r. Ex-District Accortnts 0lficer, Nn

Niz.:rmudd in Solan Ilx-Sull ./r.crountant District Accott nts Of'licc

N:rusltehro Feroze Glrrtlanl As har Ra inar. A eut I Ex-['S t.

beneficia rY ilccollll tholders & others.

I
I. Ghularn Ilttssain t-l.fian, ilx-Exectttive E'ngineer' Itoliri Diri:;itttt

Nloro appearecl in NAB Oltice toclay and dohereby state thal I was sht)\\ri

c:ertair.l D-SlieetsiStittelnerlts irr which lny take signatures havc ['l^cetl ri"ttt

ancl the alrtottttts ttl' Rs 4.294241-. its'4'70'088'/-' Rs'4'36' lllr- ittrrl

Its.76590/- has been creclitccl as the salilry amount in tltc itcctlttr't ol'rli'irct

namely Murntaz AIi Solangi.

l, firrther sttrte thtrt the abcve D-Staternents does ttot bcar irnl'1[11[t or

any purpose that why the amotrnt is being sanctiotred fbr drivcr'' btrl il r'

p"rtin.ni to poi,t ouithat on one D-Statement, has beert signed lhe [)ir't'it:t

Accountsofficer,NauslrelrroFerozeliimselfwlric.hloralll]fxt:'{il.ilt
purp0ses, lre is not legally authorized to sign on D-slaterrrerrt. 

,l.lrc 
ICt:rll.ti

conlionted to rne shorvs that D-statement has been llranagcrl ittltl ltis'r l'.'

natio[al cxchequer has been causecl thrclugh tl-re lratrclulent 1lt'actioc' As 1lt'r'

ltractice of the ilepartment rve issue bills along rvith D-S6eet to i.he l)istriul

Acc0unts office & the Disrriot Account oftlce tlse to pl'cpllre r.:ltccltrr::i it'

fhvour of the XEN being DDO use to issue thc checltre itt liw'rittt'lll

concented pers(,u. 'l'he entire alnount cretlited in lacs oI'rttpecs itt ttccottlt'

ol'MumtazAli Solangi by National Bank o{'Pakistan. l)ist.rit:t Nattsltt:lttt'

l]eroze is iliegal and I, have uo concefn rvitlr those atttottttts."

+

r)3. Thus we are of'the vierv that prima facie the[e is srrt'liciclrt tuatcriitl ttr

counect petitioner No. l7 to the offense with lr4riclt he is charl:cil ittttl as sriclr ltis

pctition lbr post arrest bail is dismissed'

\

()4. petitioncr No.lB in CPD.3673|2016 is Syed Sarlnt Shah (Acctrsed Nri'6

in the rel'erence) who at the time ol the comtnission <-if tlte otlbnsc rvas e tlatzr

,,..1-:.-...i::ipr.ocessing assistant in the oflice tll'the DAo. Ai; tnenlionsc{ curlic'r thi:; is irli olr

shoot case concerning the opening of the accottnt oi'tu'tl glrosl teachers tvhit:lr irtt'r

alrearll,becn cliscussed earlier itl tfris oldel in the case of Petitioner I'lo'8 in CI' L-i'

3{95/2016 Abdullah Nagore (Accusecl No.7 in the rct'eretrtrsl u'ho ilt lhr": iitrit' ol

,,1 '
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thc commission o1'the otl'ensc \t/iill iriltal |iocessing r.tsliistalll DA() Naushchrt'

l:erozea part of which discussion is x-Pioduuc:d as uttder lirr cnrie 'lt rclbrencu'

"ln many ways this is au oll-sliri,>l o1'l[e main case as il c(incel'ns tlre illcgai

opcning ol'salary accouuls lurti tlre iliegal payrnent of salal'ies 1o 2 gltost.

teachers (Mst .Murk aco,.t-secl No.-(O and Sajjid Ali acous';d Ng'54 hiith o1'

whorn have abscondetl) which is a pafi of the case corroerning his hos:;

(Syecl Saadat Shah accused No.(r in the ref'erence) who is oll posl anest hail

ancl whose case is deait lvith latr.:r irt this order".

9-5 Accorcling Io learncd c()unsel lor petitioner No.l8 his case i:-, iir\l colll)c(-rlL'(l

to the main peusion's case and as such should not be a part oi tlre lcli:rencc. Ili:r

case concerns the creation of tlvo ghost teachers (Ms Mttrk at:cused No.50 irntl N'{t

Sai.iid Ali accused No.54 in the ret-erence) and whorn allegedty hc paitl salat'it.rr; lo

lhc case of petitioner No. 18 is that in a nut shell he was trol respottsible lirr

putting the teachers on the pay role since he was sinrply follorving lltr: iitstnlcliottr,

passed down to hirn by his supervisor Mr. Kamil Morio ivhii:h wils lo llti llre

salaries of the teachers. It lvas the.iob of Kamil lvlorier and r:tit hinrseil'to cltcr,'lr

rvhether the teachers existed. He in elfec{ was simply a data cntry ol'fic'i:t' rvilh ntr

responsibility rvhatsoever and was corrrpletelv innocent o1'linv rvi'otrg doine. In

ef'fect he placed the blame on Mr.Kamil Morio just as trretitioncr No.8 lrld cirrlir:r

Piar:ucl tltr: L"rlanrc on ltirtt. ltt :.tt1:rprrtt ll ltis cort[citriio,ts ltrrtti,-'tl ,,,llt .,-i trl:t.. r'r!

reliance u.n Najma Srvaleh Syed V T'he Statc (200tt Yt,lt K-ar l0S7 )

lVluhanrmetl Hanif V NAB (Pl-ll 2007 Kar 429). Mrrlrnmnred Zri'ai l(han V

Federation of Pakistan Q'LD 2007 Kar 597) and Lalrore Fliglr {'orurt f,ahore

,1

rj.

through Registrar V Mina Mrrhamnred Younis (2000 S(lMIl l{i(rli)
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96 lrc.iilitrlrc.r Np. l8 [iis lrg;p:'',si"r1,'rl rr specific role in thc rctcrett'.'i:0l l)tlf il i']

rvhicir readl ils tlndel'

I

..Parag.ThattheirlvestigationreportrevealstlratAccttsedNrr.b/

Sy"J S"An Shah. drrring his incumbencl as Data Prtlcessirrg

Assistant. District Accr]unts Office'' Naushehro F-eroze' in

connivance with accusecl No.2 & 7 has created thke IDs of accusetl

No.50 & 54 without any aclvice or FO-l form from Edrrczrtion

bepartment District Natrs'hehro Feroze, therefore' the accused No'(i

trireO ttre reachers in the SAP systern illegally' unlawfirll), bv

uiotuting all coclal fonnalities as thc appointments were not orvned

by EduJation Departmcnt. therefore, creation of ID's by the lccused

resulted in loss io t;e cxchequer as illegal salaries as well as fake

pension bills had been drawn by the accusgd No'50 & 54 which

couldhavebeenpreventedbyexerciseofhislawfulauthorityarrd
undue benefit has been rendered by the accused by not following the

Rules, regulations and set pt'ocedures as laid down and causcd loss

to the exchequer."

{

.)1 . It is apparent lion.r thc record that petitioner No. l8 (lilie petitiortel No S

u,hose pre arrest bail rvas recalled earlier in this order) was ttot sinrply a tlata

i'putter. He hacl his ou,n personal pass code rvhich he usetl to creatr-'tltc ttattle:' ol'

lhe tcacl-rer.s on the data sYstcm. Hence ht-' hati a role in cleating their ptrsts itiitl

paying their salaries.'['[re eclucation tlepartment through the S. 16l slittentcrtll r;l

Nisar Ahmecl Merncln lvho is the district er'lucation ofticer has cont-irtncd lhal botlr

tcac5crs rvere fake cr.nlrloyees and did irot erist on the records rl{-tht'rrtlttr-ittir''lr

clepar.(urcnt. llrc rnalcriirl ou recorcl shorvs that petitioner No. l[i t4rcnr-'tl li'r.,rrt l'is

own i)ersonal passrvord tfte accourtt crf ghost teacher Saiiid Ali (q'htr is l!c\Ll;rLtl

No.54 i1 the rcference) alcl tlrat hc liiilecl to clreck the F() [ Irttlru itr t-cspec:t ot ottt:

ol' thc leacl.rers which che,cl.: rvotrltl ltirve shorvn tlra( the teachcr-q u crc laltt:. 'l'llc

signature ol'the DAO tiu the F0 i lbrrn is tahe anri thc form itself is [ir[<c'antl thcre

is no material to suggest that it rvits nol gc'nera.te;l $-1' petitir'rricr l"io 1r'' s5Pccilllv

since hc lrriled to chcck it. Iretitiune-r No.ltl also lailed to (iot,lpl)'rvilh ilrc Poliui'-'s

altcl guicl'li1es llid cltlrvn Liy thc ol'flce o{- tirt: l)A.() iirl'liiritig, errlplt)!3us 'ls

indicatecl ,ry the r\ccttuntanl (ie,irrirl rrf Sindh's letter daicd 2l-0-5-lil 1(i lrtltlresscd
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to Mr. Muhammad Rizwan I)eprtt''' t)irecir'ri ''tlAB and tht' ii'\r r'": "r'l! rrlii'-rl

ttrder tlated 30-05-20i I concerfling his rerlcvant r:ole attt! ,1|'11iss irl'tr'rlr]i ('' P'lrr'rll

crtrrection and hiring. 'l-his failurc to exercisc atiri misttse of atttlit:r'itf irti lile lralt

ol-petitioner No.l8 leact to loss to thc excheiluer irt temts of paying sali;rie:;ltr t]iks

ghost employees. Mr l(amit Nlono who pe titioner No.l7 has bla[rcd tirr lhe rr'lioie

incirlent has turnecl approver and lris statement has ftrlly irnplicaterl petiiitinet'

l..lo.17 in the alleged scam especially as it is corroboratecl bv the abovs iriir':r'in! i't:'

his personal access co<Je. his lirilure trr clreck that the teachers acitralh' r:xist':ti r'villi

the education clepartment, his lailure to tbllorv office policy and ollicc orclct,;. lior

ease of ref'erence the S.l(r1 statenlent ol'Kamii Morio is sct ottt belorr:

"STATEMENT U/S i61 Clt.P.C OF MR' MOrIAMM'/\l) I1'\Mll'
MORIO S/O MOFIAMMAD UMER MOzuO' SUB ACCIIIJNJT\N'|"

DISTRICT ACCOUNTS OFFICER, NAUSHEHRO IIEI(OIE II/o
VILLAGE RAHIB KhAN MORIO T,A,I,UKA & DISTRIC'f NAt iSIIII,IIR()

FEROZE CNIC # 45304-7386057-3.

I do hereby statc that today I appeared hclrirc lvit' lvi;rst'otl

Ahmed, SIO NAII Suliliur and state that I anl seivllt.l i)s .r Stll'r

Accountant, District Accounts Oft-tcer. Naushehro lt:t,r;ic I :lthtttil
that the colnputer generated report along \Yith |( )-l iirt itt ',t i,s tilott'ti
to me pertaining to the hiring of 2x PST tcar:hers ;rrrrl )i'1'er! Silrlirt

Shah has alleged that I have handed over him thc [rU-l iirrrlt:: t'rl'thc

2x teachers namely Ms l\'turkh and Saiid Ali rvho ita','c bi'rtt llrt;lchcil
trnd hired in the SAP systern District Acctitlitt (tl'l'ier-' l)islriei
Noushehro Feroze. I state that the FO-I forurs rtocr ttot sltrll tlr-1'

signatures but computer generated reports sttbtuittr.rl lri' Syt'tl

Sadad Shah with his statement shows that thc 2x illl,ovc tc:lcltcl's
have been hired by him in the SAP Systenr trnd lhcil sailrrit's
rvere released by Abdulllah Nagore another f.lat* tr'rot tssing
Oflicer and they ,rre responsibte for the hirirrg ghos;t tcachers'
The cornputer generatetl report also shows that II)'s Sycrl Satlat
Shah and Abdullah N:rgore has been rrsed. (hokl a<iilcd)"

gtt. Thus we are prima tacie of the view that petitioner 8 anil ltl c:rtiltiricd arrd

connived r.vith each other and the c'--rncerned beneficiaries ir.r tri'dci t..r illegali1' opcrr

ilre a.counts rlf the tr,vo gltost teaoht:rs (accusetl No.-50 arltl i';i .rr,ri r'i*ularl:'

illegaiiy paid salaries to thenr ra,hich was tvifhdrawn by the gt'rcsr Li;ttilcri; atl,.l .,.,

I
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such due to their lnisu.sc of aurhoritl, and fhilure io exercise authority have cause,-l

a loss to the national exchequer arrd qiveu ilicgnl benefit to accused No.50 and 5.i

both of whorn have absconcled

99. T'hus, prirna lacie we are ol- the vierv that there is sufllcient rnaterial orr

record to connect petitioner No.l8 to the of'lbnse with rvhich he is charged and as

such his petition lbl post arrest bail is disrnissed

100. Petitioner No.l9 in CPD.362312016 is Mashooq Ali Menron (Accusc-tl

No.19 in the reference) wlio at the tirne of the commission of the ofl'ense u,as a

Sub-Accountant, Districl Accounts Office District Naushehro Pcrcze posletl in

payrnent head section

l0i. I.,eamed counsel flor petitioner No.l9 subrnitted his r.lle as tr sub accorrrrlanl

u'as confined to receiving the list of bills back iionr the main blrrrrc:h ;trrti tho,.,

aller to fultill tu'o tunctions. Firstly to lri lirrcatc tlrc bills.tric()r'-liug ltr tirltarrrrrcrit

c.g. education, health etc and therealtcr secondly to ertter tlrs (lata iuto a cr)l)tilitter.

[-lc played no role in clrecking the bills which according ro hirrr uus !irr: roit ol

NizatrLrddin Solangi (accused No.3 ur the ret-erence rvlicrst- llr.r ilnosi bail rvir-s

lecallecl earlier in this order).ln csscucc he place<I ths lrl.rrnc on N.lizlutrrrrlilrrr

Solangi. ln support of ltis contentions he placed relianc:e on Lhe S.l6l :itarcrrrcnls

o( Gltulam Shabbir, Ghrrlarn Ra.ipLrr, lVluiahi<l Ali l'anlvari lurri [\,irii.r;ru,iu ,,\ziz. ti.,

subrnittcd that he was inttocent o1'any \vrong doing ancl as sucli lrc u,irs crrtitlt:cl to

be cnlarged on post arrest llail. in supporl o1'his contentions lit: placcd r,-lliiutc(j ()ll

y thc cases of sardar Amin Farooqui v. Trre chairmau NAII. r2014 lr.Cr.l-.I

186), Abdul Hadi Siddiqui v. Nationar Accountability Bureau (1015 p.cr.t..J

185), Muhammad Shoaib wasti v. Nationar Accountability Buredu (2009

YLR 155), Humera shakeel v. The state (2008 p.u^r.L..r 701). Abdul .\ziz

-E:_-:.
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Khan Niazi v. The state (lrl,l) 200:1 st-l 668) and Zulfiqar AIi Abtrasi v' 'l'he

State (2008 YLR 2229)

r02 The petitioner No. 19 has bcen assigned a specific role in the ret'erence ai

Partt22 which states as unde'r

"Para22. 'that the itl'estigatiott report reveals that accused No'19 /

Mashooq Ali Memon. SiU-accountant, District Accottnt.s Oftlce

District Natshehro Feroze was posted in payment head section ol'

DAO Naushehro Feroze and in connivaT ce lvith accused No' t to 5'

8, 10, 13, 17, 18,2() to 63 was involved in misuse ol'authority and

misappropriaiion of government funds as accusetl No'19 willlirlly'

int"niionatty, unlawfully failed to exercise his authority by not

lawfully tattying / verirying the Accounts ot n1{1t1t, Accounts

Office Naushehro Feroze wiih the bank scrolls of NBP Naushehro

Feroze main branch antt did not object on illegal pxymerlts bv barrl<

otficials which he could have prwented by the exercisillg t-rl'ltis

arrtlroritybylawf.ullyrecorrcilingacoountS,.I'lrerelbre,i,tc-cuscrj
No. 19 is involved in misuse of authority and misapprr4rriatiorr ol'

lunds which caused loss to the national exchequer"'

I03. From tl.re material place<l belbre us it appcars lhat lrutitiottcr No I/)

pcrlbnned a similar rclle iu the DAL) as Petiti1ncr No.3 Imtiirz r\li Sailito ''rltt' llt:

tvorketl along side with iri the oflloc ol'the DAO. ln otrr vierv lrc. likc l)c(iiiotte:t'

No.3 lmtiaz Ali Sahito. irad thc rolc o1'reconciling thc: bitis and bY ntistrsirrg his

authority and tiriling to crercise this itLrthorit-v Ite cartscil lltlP.(l l():ic ttl lltc ttitltottitl

L-\chequer- In our vietv the salne reAsotl fix tlenyir"rg petitit)tler \tr. i pt't: ilrrc:il hiril

(bar the question of tnalatides and any absence lioqr the oflice '-ltuing llt': t''rltvrtttt

tinre.) are itrlll'applicable in his casc. Natnely the S.l(rl stalctrrctil trl'l)hrrrri litrs

t(han Jahejo a sub accou1ttant rvhti gave the precise procc:tltlri r^,hic:lt tlit' Pr'l itir-'11r'l'

rvas required to undertake and cverr the rulcs r.vhich pr.'titirtn,-:l'|'lo.i lruti:rir Ali

Sahito himself relied upon (Colnbincd sct ol'['rcasury ltttlcs \.rt'l i irirtl Il]rtlrit'h

specificalll, proliclc fbr phr.sical rcconciliation of the accottlli:,. l'ctititlncl irlo.lt)

h*ti rvorkecl in the DAO's otlice tor"around -) ycars atrcl rvrltlti hlrl'': htcn firll]

a\val.L'ol-i1is responsibilities and the lelevant rules and procedtlrt:: rr'hich rclirt':d lo

{
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his positionr'lob li.rnction. ln tact it rvoti jti illlpr:ar. lhat in lhe libsr.ucc ol"pelitirrrrrr.

No.3 Imtiaz Ali Sahito lbr a shrrrt punod on leavs petinirn,;r No.J .rvas r.vorl.ing

alongside IVlr' Nizarnntuildin Solangi trccused No.3 irr the rettrcnce rvtro 5c is

tryirlu to placc tlie blante <tn. Ilvcn tr.vo reconciliation sheets rvhich havcr becn

placed betbre us shorv that petitioner i{o. lt) rvho was a grade 14 otficer has signe6

lltc same as DAO lvhich he had ntl legal ;ruthority to sign since neitlter rvas he cver

a DAo ,or was he a gracle l8 officer which is the rclevant grade tbr a Dr\o. rhe

Petitioner lias therefore illegally signcd tlrese lbnls u,ith out any authority rvhar sg

cvcr aud is an endorsement of a reconciliation of accounts rvhich rvas never matle

in respect of the beneficiaries who rvere illegally pai<I.

104' In our vierv based on the rnaterial placcd on record petitioner No-lr).

itccttsed No.3 Nizarnuddin Solangi ancl petitioner No.3 Imtiaz Ali Sahiro rvere

prilna lacie alI worl<ing in collusiou and connivance rvith each other in the DOz|s

o{llce in ortlet ttl give elfect to tlre allegecl scam. If only ole rrl'them q-ou1l ha.i.e

cxcrcisetl llteir authority ol' not nrisusccl tlreir authority then the rvlrole scalr coultl

ttol ltar"c taken plaoc and a hugc loss tr.r thc exclrerluer could havc been prL-r.gnle(l

105' Iu ottr view basecl on the above cliscussion there is prima I'acie sullicicnt

nllterial to counect petitioner No.l9 tu thc: ot}'cnse lor rvhich he is charecd and as

suclr his pctil.ion lor post arrest lrail is clisnrissed.

106. Petitioncr No.20 in Clr.D 4l0j/2016 is Muhammad Karim (Accused

No'3(r in the refereuce) rvho at the time o1'the commission of the otl'ense uas

rlrawing pension illegally as guar.tlian.

lo7 - Learned counsel for petitioner No.20 submitted that his uncle had died in

Go'ernment service who had a 5 year old daughter and he was drarving pensiorr

I
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on h13r bchalf.,/rccordirrg 1.6 [cttrtcei L:1)iinii()l hc wili rcccivipg,,],ri.il'ii(rl] r]i

approximately R8 to 9,000 pcL ntouth ur her behali'arxl lhat hcr ll'irs iir-., illitsrate

person who had no idea that the lrank rnanager of l]hiria flrarrch (petitioner

No.l/accused No.l Muhamnred Arif 'leevno) had been illcgally using his bank

acDounl wilhout either his perrnissiorr ol ktrowledge and he rva:; completclv

I unaware of any transactions rvhich may have been taking place. in his account

Essentially he passed the blame on to petitioner No.l/accused No.I Muhaurnred

Arif'Teevno

108. PeLitioner No.20 has been assigned a specific role in ths 16:li;r6r1t\-:1: ur i)trra

-19 which states as under

.r.

"Para 39. That the investigation report reveals that accused No. -i6:
Muhammad Karim lvas drawing pension illegallv as gr,tartlian. ilicgal
"payees account only" bills were credited in his rr.counI irr
connivance rvith AccusedNo.l to 4, 8,9, l0 & 19, I6;r tuiicrthrrrinrv
pension credit advice / invoice of fake/dummy pcnsioners antl non-
pensioners were credited to the tune of Rs.42,05,079r,- {l,ort.\, lrvo
Lac Five Thousand and Seventy Nine Rupees Ouly) irr his ;\ir;
No.7887 of NBP Bhiria City Branch Naushehro F-eroze firr.rvlrierlr lie
was not legally entitled and investigation report lurthcr rc,vcalcd tlrtrt
additional amounts of more fake pension invoicc,s i pa-!'er-.1; rr(lc{}ru1l
bills were issued in his name for Rs.3,39,582/- ('I'hr.'c [-iic '!-hir.tv

Nine Thousand Five Hundred Eighty Two Rupees Oniy) whith rvere
illegally credited in his above mentioned acc:otrnt. l.lrcrcrtirr.c.
accused No.36 is involved in misappropriation ol'{-irrvr. Furrtls a:.
beneficiary account holder, abettor and facilitator in ,:onnivanoe t,itlr
other above rnentioned accused persons to the turle of Ils.;tj..44.(rri lr-
(Forty Five Lac Forty Four Thousand Six Flundrr:tl Sixtv ()ne
Rupees Only) ivhich caused loss to the national excherluer...

109. 'l'he recotrl reveals that petitioner No.20 rvas not total!y illiterrrc nrllr,::r tliir{

lrt" u'as educaled tu intemediitte levcl. Ihere ryas no rrralerial ol) l.r-uoi.ri to r;irrr.r

that legally he harl been appointed guardian of an.v-' child. Eve6 ritSgrrvrst: it is

strange that in our society the gtnrdianship was not giveu to tlrr hrotlier- r,i'llrr.:

deceased uncle lvho is living as opposccl to petitioner No.20.ilis lrirnli:rtaterlr.rrl

sho$'s that anlounts oIRS ole iac rrtd ahove have been reguiarll, passinll thrc-]rrglr
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his accounl ll'orn ltl-06-20 l4 fo ltl-{}*,,-j!)1.\ (it ollLr ycar.pr.r.i*tl ; :u.r<l ririrt ilrl

pe tilioner appears to llc uuaware ol srrcrir tr;rnsaclions. In our. vie,w rhis is rlrl licrrlt

to believe ancl tends to shor.l' thal he rvas in reague witrr petitio.cr |Jo.riaccuscrr

No l Muhantrned Aril'Teevno and rvas lirllv alvare of the allcgcd scarn rather tharr

beins un$'itti,glv usecr. He certainl-v rrati rro regal right to colrect an1., pensi,."

crpies ol'somc cheques o, record are in his hand rvriting and bea.r his signaturc

and arc pa1'able to self rvhich f'urtlrer shorvs that peritioner No.20 rvas operating his

account and he was aware of the allegeci scam especially as these c6er;ur:s in rris

txvn hand rvriting are for amounts rvell beyoncl the level of pen.^ion rvhicl hc rvai;

hcing paid' other small scale rvithdrawals also show that he wirs oper.ting t6c

'lccotlnt' As such $'e do not accept the conterntion that lrc rvls ulawar,; .l llrcr

allegcd scam and \yas not a part olit.

I l0' In ottr r,'icil' based on the abovt: cliscussion l.here is prinra lrrcie srrl.llcicrt

tnaterial orr record to connect petitionur No.20 to the ofrbnse rr,i. ,r,iiit:lr rrr-.i:r

charged and as such his petition lbr po.st arrest bail is clismissetl.

lll' Petitioner No.2r in cp. D 4r$srz$r6is Sajjad Huss:iin {t.c,scrl Nri.Jrr

in the re{c.ence) who at the tirne o1'rhc c.rnmission or. tlre urli;rr.rr: \\,.s .i ,()ll
pensioner drarving pensior.r illeqal lr,.

l12' Lear,ed counser for petitioner N..21 subrnitted thar petititi,cr.N,r.rl..;

lirthel lrad died tvhose pettsion passcd t, Ilis rnother rvhc, later tliccl anri rlier-crli.r.

lltc Pension pasl;ed to hirn ancr as srrch rrc rvas reoeiving pr;ns.iorr f) \,,)enr.:;. r!r:

strbrnitted that petitioner No.2 I was an illiterate person wlr. harl no itlea rhrrt tht:

batik ttranager of i\BP Bhiria Branch petitioner Ntl. l/itccused No. I Nluhurrrrnc,l

Ari[ 'l-eevno had lrcen illegally using his; btrnk accorrnl voilirotit citlrer lriLr

llcrmissiott or knovrledge antl he rvas conrpletclv un,rware ol'rrnr,. iLarrsucii'ns

rvhich lnay have bct:n taking;rlacc in his account. Essentially. lilir g.rr-,litiori,-,r

I

i

i
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}-Itl.]().hepassedtlteblirrltt\}l!tillli:lili()llc1,.NU.ii3c.-'IrseclJ.Jtl,]Nlrrlrirmtttetl,\ril

Tccvtto

1 l'j PetitionerNo.2llrasb:ettits-'illtlcdirslrcciliut.tilcirrtlrcreli:rettr':t:it(l-itrlt

43 which statcs as under

{
'.I)ara43Thattlreinvestigationleportrevgalstltatacoused.No'40/Sajjltl
Flttssainwaszll"tt)t1-pensionet..drarvingpensi.lnilleeall-v..pA\,eeslcctrttttl
only,.bills in rrir r".jurt in c.rnnivan". *jrt't-n."usr-:r1 No'l t() ii' ti'g' l(l &

lg, 0gx lake/du[irir"y"'i.oi,n crcdit i,rivics I irivoicc ol' lhlct"'tltrtttnt]

pensioners ona,.lur,-p"n'*ir,).,0 *",*.r"dit"J to thc ltlllc t11'[ts lt(-l'1'li3'li-

iE,ier.,t""n L^.., Fo'j;f;;'..';i';rr;;; Eighr Hun,trcd flrrtl i'ltitti' Iroiu lttti'cc'

only) in his A/c N". [zio 
"rlrBP 

Bhiria iit-t gtrr"r, Nattshcitro 1:tt'67g lirt'

r,vhich he was not legally entitled 1".4 
f""{e""on report. 

i:1'll]"' 
revcirlecl

rlurt additionol nrro-riitr'nltn1or" takc pensiin iitvotr,es / p.1'etrs itr"e.ttllt

bills r.vere ir.,ttl'i;'iti; n""l"'o' n''r:fa':rt' :ltitl:.''l]'i''r.c 
l;oi'i'i' sir

Tl.rousancl r,". urri.ra""n.l l'rrirr""r.r riup".t oulr") tvlricit ircr': illcgalh

creditedi"ni,,r.,o"emer',tiorreclo..o..u.,t.1-1.,g1c1irl,e]cr-ttsetlNtr.l(ir:l
involved i' *it';;;;;i;-;t ;ic""t' rt'nat trs lrencflciar''l::i::'""t h0ltlct'

llbettotantltacilitatorincotrnivanccrvitlrolhgll[rtrr,ctrrctlliotreclltccl.tsctl
perso[s to rtre tu#llrir.ii,:1.0;17l- (rh;;;;on. I itcs Sixtl' ('itt: ilttrtti'tttt''l

and tbrry- Seven lLupecs t)riy)."tri.t-,.,,ua."i ltlss tt' lllt ttlttiotrel clultctltlct "

ll4.ottccagainpetitioncrNo.]l'sr;iitltetltiontii;ti}r.i:'illit.:tllt,-iri.-lrt:ltr:,,Ih..

hisownaccountopenirrgtbrnrwl-ricltshorl,sltitrtit.:itttitrt't:t.ttlttliitt.:.()r.

-.1

conli.ontation learned counsel ti-rr thc- petitioner Nrl.2 I r:otrceded llrlrt ltctttittr'''

N<r.2lwasreceivlngapensionillegallyilg}1grvilslr22\:..:aL.rldltta.tirrrt]licitit,.lit.,

right to receivc any pensiorr. As with pctitit)nef Nrt.f(-} lar:gc itlntltlilIs,,1'tl|| |icl,ortri

his pensiUfl anlount was passillg lhrotrgh lris accoutrl {br over it )cilt' \'(:t ltc ''liil ttr'[

raise arly alarm.l:le coulintted to use the accollt]l.' lntlccil chetlucs'rln recortl' lts il.t

thc uase ol petitioner No.2(}, have beetr writtcn itr lril; orvtt itattcl rr,riting, itntl :;igncii

l:.,-hinrandpayabletolrirnsclfforsutnsrvclIbeyorrcltilelcl,cii-.|.ltispetlsitrtr.

Other smirll amollnts were also regularly wiltrclrawn iionr his at:cr)utt[ irrrtl uitlr tli

the indications that he was hand in glove with petltl(.'[or

Muharnmed Arif Teevno

No.l/accuscd No-l

I
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I15. As such wr ilrc r,rt'tlrc vicrv tlr:rr lrc slarrtis on the satne lbotirrg rls l),-titir)/)'-'r

No.20 and in our view therc is srrllicrcnt material on necord to prima (itcic ooltlttte I

hinr with the offense for r,vhiclr i're is charged and as such his petitioll lirr ptrsl

arrest bail is dismissed.

[n surnmary.

I 16. T[e ortlers tbr acJ interinr pl'e arrest bail granted to the fbllowing petitionels

arc heleby recalled rvith imntedtate effect:

I . Muhammad Arif Teevno (Acr;used No. I in the reference)

2. Ms Hameetla Khanum (Accused No-l I in the ret'ercnc'-')

3. Imtiaz Ali Salrito (Accused No-'l in the rel'erencc)

4. Khan Muhammad Fizada (Accused \6.-5 in the rel'elcnt:c)

5. Ahmed Khan Solangi (Accused No.9 in the ref'erett<:e)

6. Syed Sabul Shah (r\ccused No.2l in the refcrcncci

7. Chulam Asghar Rajper (Accuscd No. l0 in tlte r.:ll:rcnce)

8. Abdullah Nagore {Accused No.7 in the retbrcnco)

9. Imtiaz Ali Kalhoro (Accuscrcl No 27 in the rel'ercrrcc)

10, Nizamuddin Solangi (Accused No 3 in the rtrterent'e)

lll . The orders for ad interim pre arrest bail granted tri lht'lirllonrlrtt

petitioners arc hercby conlirmed subject to each of the petitiotrcrs litruishitrg

solvent surety in the suur of Rs 100,000 and PR bond in the lilte atnotrttl lo tlre

satisf'ar;tion of the Additional Registrar of this Court in addition to ilny 1;u1911

already furnished by thein. It is made clear that not withstanding thc

proceedings in the reference sincc these petitioners appear to be genttinr:

pensioners they ntay coutinue to rcceive their pen.sions :rrttl tto btr tlr

I

{

rcstrictiou shall be put in tlreil u,a)' in this rcspect.

}
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1. Ivlst. .Jrtttnat Khtio+tt i '1r:clirrad No.62 in ttlLr rclbrellce)

?. Mst ,Ianr:rlan [Ac:i',.tsr.:ri ,'.,icr tr-] in the ret'erencc)

3. Mst. Shazia tr'ill"veetl (Actcusetl No 26 in the rel'erencc)

vl. Mst A.ieeban (i\octtsi:tl i\o el6 in the relbrence)

I 18. The petitions lbr post arrest luil moved b-v the following pefitioners arc

hercby dismissed:

l. Manthar Ali Bhaubhl'o (Accused No l5 in thc reference)

2. Wajitl Ali llaber (Acctrscd No.l6 in the refbrence)

3. Mumtaz AIi Solangi (accused No. i4 in the rel'erertce)

-1. Syed S:rdat Shah (Accused No.6 in the reference)

5. Nl:rshooq Ali N{ernou (Accused No. l9 in the refbrenr:e)

6. lVluhamntad Karim (Accttsed fio"36 in the rctclcnc'e)

7. Saijad Flussain (Acoused No.40 in tlte re f'erence)

It9. -[he Accountability Coufi proceeding with this reference is dirccted to

dccide the same within a period of six rnonths from the date of this order a ctlpy ol

which shall be imrnediately transnritted by the office tc) the ,.:oncr:rnet!

AccountabiIity Coult

120. Belbre parting $,ith this order u,e have observecl rvith sonle collc(-l'n lhirt itr

a nlrmbcrr o[' N r\B cases in Sukkur (including this re1-erence) there are rnore that 20

accusecl. Althou;rh it is in NAB's discretion as to how mally acoused it places irt rr

ret-erence based crtr the evidencc befbre it in our vicrw NAIJ seriously lteecls lo

consider whether putting so lnany accnsed in one rel'crence will lt:ad to an

expeditious disposal of the case in favour of thc Prosecuticrn. F'or example- iu the

{

{

)|

orvn counsel rvhich nray entail 6J sepalate cross erarninations of each prosccutii.lt

retbrence in the instirnt case there are 63 accused each <lf rvhom rna\' have tlte it'
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rvihrrrs:; b.v (r3 ilil'{'crcttt cottttirt:l iirr'the rtccttsr,'r-l' llelaYs arc itlso lil<c:lr'' Io l"'

r:lrlicd dttc ltt tltc ;rbScncc ,ii'tl(,llll:rcl,, illrscttic t.rl'ltcc:usCtl' ihc tlrargc ltitvitrg 1() h'-'

r.\rliilrlc(l cvery tinre arr ubscolrtlcr sullcrrclcrs be[bl'er lhc accouni rrliilily crrtrrl (irl

tlris trlr.ic {hcrc apltcnr to bc over 20 lhsctrrrders) rvhich ttrav lcittl to cxtrt:nrelY

ltr0long.ctl tl.ials and usc tll) llt'gc atuottnls ol'NAB's l L-sollrccs rvltich scct1]S lO llc

agitins{ thc letter antl spilit ol'tlrt: NAo as pct its prt'arrrl.rlc ;rtttl s !6(ir) 'vhicir

aintcd tq gualalltcc sllccdy lrials cslleciillly trelrilg in rlintl l.hlrt tro r;l.alrrlorv hail is

:ri,ailablc in NAIJ citses uld t)lll)' the grouncl ol hartlslrip cittt llc ttsc'cl as it grtltttld

lirr. rlclaf irr cornplcting the trial. ln this rcspccl wc tlitct:l Ilrtr ol'lit:e lo lirrr""itrtl rr

c,)l)y ()l'thc lflst 2 paees ol'this ilr.lcr ttr tlrc Chairtrrlrr l'lAll arttl lxi l"lAI" Srrl"l'rrr

li rr thcir cousidcratioll
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